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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Business review

Renewable energy market conditions in the People’s Republic of
China (“China” or “PRC”) stabilised and improved in 2013 after
a difficult year in 2012. According to the World Bank, China now
has 16 of the world’s most polluted cities in the world, with Beijing
making frequent warnings for the elderly and children to remain
indoors. As a result, pollution now is a potential leading cause
of social unrest in the country. Therefore, over the last year, the
PRC government implemented a number of policies to support the
renewable energy sector. These policies will ensure the orderly and
gradual development of renewable energy. Investment on mega-
transmission infrastructure has been expedited and increased in order
to tackle the inability of the transmission grid to transmit the power
generated by renewable energy sources. The levy on non-residential
and non-farming power users has been increased to support the
industry. These funds will result in a reduction in accounts receivables
stemming from the government’s delay in providing subsidies to
renewable energy providers, and will improve the liquidity of the
operators in the sector. Also, there has been a clear directive for
all officials to place less emphasis on growth at the expense of the
environment, and to make environmental protection a priority.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Business review (continued)

Capitalising on this improved operating environment, China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE” or “the Company”, and
with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) has slightly adjusted its
business development plan, and is looking to further expand. Having
secured bank financing and negotiated a more favourable price for
wind equipment, the Group commenced the development of the
Phase Two 49.5 mega-watt (“MW”) wind farm project in Siziwang Qi
in Western Inner Mongolia in September 2013. In addition, the Group
is conducting wind testing in various locations to identify potential
pipeline projects for future development.

Power curtailment in the first half of the year remained severe.
However, curtailment dropped significantly in the second half of the
year. For the entire year, power curtailment for the Group’s wind
farms declined. Favourable weather conditions with better wind
resources coupled with lower curtailment resulted in a higher revenue
for 2013 of HK$113.7 million, an increase of 14% compared to the
previous year, even though income related to the Certified Emission
Reduction (“CER”) under the Clean Development Mechanism - the
subsidy mechanism of the environmental protection regime from the
United Nations, did not contribute much due to low unit trading price
over the year. Given the continuous enhancement of the effectiveness
and efficiency of existing wind farm assets, and the maintenance of
an acceptable level of administrative costs, the Group recorded a net
profit after tax of HK$27.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2013, which represents a basic earning of HK1.20 cents.

The Group has total assets of HK$2,701.8 million as at 31 December
2013 and its cash position remains healthy, with cash and cash
equivalents of HK$271.1 million. This represents a basic net asset
value per share of HK$0.76.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Prospects

The outlook for 2014 is expected to be positive for the renewable
energy industry. To continue combating urban pollution, the PRC
government will continue implementing new policies to support
the industry. The PRC government will submit a directive called
the “Opinion to accelerate the development of the wind power
industry” which may lead to the implementation of an updated
renewable portfolio standard setting new targets for the provincial
level governments to achieve. New mega-transmission infrastructure
for transmitting 140 giga-watt (“GW”) renewable energy by 2015
is scheduled to gradually roll out in accordance with the State
Grid’s development plan. This is expected to significantly reduce
curtailment, resulting in increased power generation.

The commencement of a local CER trading market in Shenzhen
in 2013 may provide further support for the industry and revitalise
the CER market. According to statistics from the China Emission
Exchange, the trading price was between RMB30 to RMB60 per
ton from June to September 2013. Once the CER markets in China
become more mature and widely available to all renewable energy
operators, the Group will benefit from such implementation to obtain
an additional revenue stream.

In the coming years, the Group will continue its prudent approach
in managing its assets and in adjusting the business plan to
accommodate the latest market development. Issues that the
Company is preparing for include: rising bank finance costs and
expected increases in operation and maintenance costs due to the
expiration of the warranty period. In addition, safety, efficiency and
effectiveness will remain the main focus in operating these renewable
energy assets.

As the construction of the Siziwang Qi Phase Two wind farm project
is well underway, the Group will commence a preliminary study for
Phase Three, a 100 MW wind farm project. Wind testing will also be
conducted in the southern part of China in order to further develop
the Group’s wind farm pipeline. In order to ensure good returns, the
Group will carefully monitor the amount of curtailment and the cost of
financing.

QOver the long term, the management will continue to properly manage
the Group’s assets portfolio, strengthen the capital base and seek
strategic alliance to broaden its investment platform so as to ensure
CRE generates the best returns for its shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2013, China Renewable Energy
Investment Limited (“CRE” or the “Company”, and with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) recorded a turnover on its
alternative energy assets of HK$113.7 million, an increase of 14%
from HK$99.5 million for the same period in 2012. Gross profit
was HK$42.2 million which was 110% higher than the gross profit
of HK$20.1 million in 2012. Better wind resources, decreased
curtailment and effective control over operating costs resulted in such
an increase.

Wind farms and the waste-to-energy plant operating under the
associated companies contributed profits of HK$58.8 million to the
Group. Profit contribution from the associated companies decreased
by 27% from HK$80.7 million in 2012 due to the inclusion of a one-off
tax benefit HK$22.9 million granted by the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”, or “China”) Tax Bureau in the result of an associated company
in 2012.

A lower trading price of CRE’s shares compared to 2012 resulted in a
fair value gain of HK$2.2 million being recognised on the investment
right granted to a private investment firm TPG Growth (with its
subsidiary STAR Butterfly Energy, Ltd. (“STAR”), collectively, the
“TPG”) on 23 November 2010.

Through continuous effort in controlling spending, the Group’s
administrative expenses were HK$29.4 million; 22% lower than last
year’s HK$37.5 million.

The Group’s net profit after tax attributable to the equity holders
was HK$28.2 million for 2013 (2012: a net loss after tax of HK$82.7
million). Basic earnings per share was HK1.20 cents as compared to
last year basic loss per share of HK3.51 cents.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Financial Review (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s total bank borrowings was
HK$634.5 million as compared to HK$623.1 million in 2012. The
difference was mainly due to drawdown bank loan amounting to
HK$74.2 million for the Siziwang Qi Phase Two project, repayment of
principal instalments of HK$72.9 million for other wind farm projects
and currency exchange difference.

The bank borrowings include interest-bearing Renminbi bank loans
to the Group’s wind farm projects in PRC, with interest rates fixed at
the People’s Bank of China rates. The maturity dates for the Group’s
outstanding borrowings were spread over the next ten years. There
were HK$72.3 million repayable within one year, HK$318.7 million
repayable within two to five years and HK$243.5 million repayable
after five years.

Convertible notes of principal amount RMB75.0 million (equivalent to
HK$93.2 million) (CN 2012") were issued to HKC (Holdings) Limited
(“HKC”, and with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “HKC Group”)
on 18 December 2012 to raise fund for financing future project
development, providing working capital and repaying borrowings,
including convertible notes issued in 2009. CN 2012 is for the term
of three years with early redemption by both issuer and holder. It
bears interest on its outstanding principal amount at 6.4% per annum
accrued every year but pays arrears on the maturity date or, in the
event of early redemption any part in relation to the principal amount
that has been converted prior to the maturity date, on the date of such
redemption. The conversion price of CN 2012 is fixed at HK$0.68.
The aggregate carrying amount of CN 2012 principal and accrued
interest was HK$102.0 million as at 31 December 2013.

The Group’s unrestricted cash and cash equivalent were HK$271.1
million as at 31 December 2013 as compared to HK$238.2 million
in 2012. Such increase represented cash received from normal
operation and bank loan drawdown for Siziwang Qi Phase Two
project.

The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purposes during the period under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Financial Review (continued)

Details of Charges in Group Assets

The Group’s subsidiaries have charged their assets including wind
power equipment, construction in progress, prepaid land lease
payments and trade receivables, worth approximately RMB932.2
million (equivalent to HK$1,192.2 million) as security for the bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2013. Assets, worth approximately
RMB809.9 million (equivalent to HK$1,007.3 million), were charged
as at 31 December 2012. The difference arises from the increase of
construction in progress from Siziwang Qi Phase Two project being
pledged and the appreciation of the Renminbi currency.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s gearing ratio, which was the
total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, excluding the cash
and cash equivalents related to the discontinued software business
but including restricted cash, divided by total equity, was 26% as
compared to 28% as at 31 December 2012.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2013 (Nil as at 31 December 2012).

Business Review

The renewable energy business showed recovery in 2013 after a
tough year in 2012. In China, there has been increased awareness
of the adverse social and economic consequences of environmental
pollution. Despite the slowdown in economic growth leading to less
energy demand, the PRC government is determined to tackle the
pollution issue and has put considerable effort in promoting and
supporting the renewable energy sector in 2013.

Following the issuance of an implementation notice in January
2013 restating the importance of renewable energy under China’s
twelfth 5-year plan (“12th FYP”), the approval on the construction
of transmission infrastructure has been expedited. In order to ease
off the transmission bottle-neck that has led to the curtailment
currently troubling the renewable energy industry, the State Grid has
announced an investment of RMBS3 trillion for the implementation of
a mega-transmission network for transporting power from the west
energy generating region to the east energy in-need region. The
levy imposed on non-residential and non-farming power users has
been increased by the Department of Finance to raise funds for early
settlement of subsidy tariff.

10 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Business Review (continued)

Amidst these positive changes in the renewable energy operating
environment, the Group has realigned its development plan and
business development strategy. Bank financing has been obtained for
the development of Siziwang Qi Phase Two, the second 49.5 mega-
watt (“MW?”) project of a potential 1,000 MW wind farm complex in the
West Inner Mongolia. Construction work commenced in September
2013 with wind equipment being delivered in batches and assembled
on site for final hoisting. All work has been on schedule and is
expected to be completed for testing in mid 2014.

Continuous efforts have been made to ensure the safety and reliability
of the existing renewable energy assets, which comprise of 6 wind
farms with total gross power generating capacity of 610.5 MW and
a 25 MW waste-to-energy plant. The performance of the renewable
energy assets in 2013 was better than the previous year.

Mudanjiang and Muling Wind Farms

Mudanjiang and Muling wind farms, located in Heilongjiang province,
have a total of 59.5 MW of wind power capacity. The wind farms
started commercial operation in the fourth quarter of 2007. The
Group holds majority stakes of 86% and 86.68% respectively. Power
despatch was around 72.1 million Kilowatt-hour (“KWh”), which was
equivalent to 1,210 efficiency hours in 2013. Lower curtailment rate
has resulted in better performance this year.

Siziwang Qi Phase One Wind Farm

Siziwang Qi Phase One wind farm has a total of 49.5 MW of wind
power capacity and is wholly-owned by the Group. It is located 16
kilometres (“km”) north of Wulanhua under Siziwang Qi of Western
Inner Mongolia. Commercial operation started January 2011. The
wind farm is the first phase of a strategic 1,000 MW wind farm
base for the Group. Siziwang Qi Phase One wind farm despatched
105.3 million KWh (an equivalent to 2,130 efficiency hours) in 2013.
Better wind resources, lower curtailment and more effective controls
over expenditures has accounted for such improvement in power
despatch.

Danjinghe Wind Farm

The Group has a 40% effective equity interest in the 200 MW
Danjinghe wind farm located in Hebei. The majority and controlling
shareholder is the wind division subsidiary of China Energy
Conservation and Environmental Protection Group (collectively
“CECEP”), who holds 60%. The entire wind farm, which consists of
three phases, started commercial operation in September 2010. The
power despatched in 2013 was a record high 507.7 million KWh (an
equivalent to 2,540 efficiency hours). As a project obtained through
the national tendering process, the wind farm enjoyed close to zero
curtailment last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EEEWE D ()

Business Review (continued)

Changma Wind Farm

Changma wind farm, located in Gansu province, is a joint venture
with CECEP. The Group has a 40% effective interest in the project
company. The 201 MW wind farm started commercial operation
in November 2010. This project, also obtained through national
tendering, enjoyed low curtailment in 2013 and despatched around
416.5 million KWh (an equivalent to 2,070 efficiency hours), which was
significantly better than in 2012.

Lunaobao Wind Farm

Lunaobao wind farm is a joint venture with CECEP adjacent to the
Danjinghe wind farm. The Group has a 30% effective equity interest.
The wind farm capacity is 100.5 MW commenced commercial
operation in February 2011. The power despatched in 2013 was
172.9 million KWh (an equivalent to 1,720 efficiency hours), which was
not as good as in 2012. Unlike Danjinghe, Lunaobao wind farm was
not obtained through national tendering process; and, hence, does
not enjoy low curtailment. Due to heavy curtailment during the first half
of the year, dispatch for the full year was 255 efficiency hours lower
compared to 2012. However, there was significant improvement in
the second half of the year as dispatch increased by 344 efficiency
hours compared to the same period in 2012. Curtailment for this wind
farm is expected to remain high, but the rate should continue to drop
over the next couple of years as a new high voltage transmission line
is currently under construction.

Linyi Waste-to-energy Plant

Linyi waste-to-energy plant of 25 MW power generating capacity is a
joint venture with CECEP located in Shandong province. The Group
owns a 40% effective equity interest. The plant went into commercial
operation in September 2007 and is now running at its full designed
capacity. In 2013, approximately 452,000 tonnes of garbage was
being handled and 87.8 million KWh of power was despatched.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Outlook

The recovery of the renewable energy sector is anticipated to
continue throughout 2014. Aiming to combat pollution, the PRC
government will continue its support and promotion of renewable
energy. Favourable policies, such as tax incentives and increased
subsidies, will improve the financial attractiveness for developing new
projects. Project approval is expected to be decentralised allowing
the provincial level Development and Reform Committee (“DRC”
or, on the national level, “NDRC”) to take control of the process in
accordance with the national plan. It is expected that such change
will shorten the time of approval while at the same time ensuring
the orderly growth of the industry. With the mega-transmission
networks gradually coming into commercial operation in 2014 and
the following years, curtailment should decrease, leading to increased
power despatch and a healthier financial status for the operators.
The establishment of a Certified Emission Reduction (“CER”) trading
exchange in Shenzhen in 2013 could reinvigorate the market for CER
— a market that was damaged by the poor Euro Zone economy. The
new CER exchange, and similar establishments expected to come,
although still immature, may eventually become an alternative to the
original European CER market.

In view of these positive developments in the renewable energy
market, the Group has adjusted its business plan. For the existing
renewable energy assets, operational and safety procedures will
be enhanced with the industry’s best practices to maintain low
operational risk and low production costs. In order to assure
the reliability and availability of the renewable energy generating
equipment, sufficient effort will be made to liaise with suppliers
to ensure that they will be available to handle any repair and
maintenance even after the warranties are being expired. The
Group will also closely monitor the impact of rising interest rate on
the Group’s project bank financing and will explore other financing
alternatives available.

The Group will complete the construction of Siziwang Qi Phase Two
for trial run in mid 2014. Initial study and preliminary development
planning for Siziwang Qi Phase Three, a 100 MW wind farm project,
will commence. The Group will adopt the usual prudent approach
on conducting careful analysis of investment risks, returns and
commercial viability. The Group will continue to monitor the progress
of the approval for the wind farm project in Kulun Qi of Tongliao
City, East Inner Mongolia, Phase One 49.5 MW out of the potential
maximum 200 MW wind farm. Wind testing in the southern region
of China will be carried on to identify potential high quality pipeline
projects for future development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
EEREN WKk (E)

Outlook (continued)

Following the Group’s long term strategy, different types of renewable
energy other than wind energy will be explored as new technology
on renewable energy develop. The Group’s assets portfolio will
be properly assessed and managed. Strategic alliance to secure
investment funding and expansion opportunities will be investigated
SO as to create the best return for our shareholders.

Environmental, Social and Governance Issues

The Group is one of the leading players involved in environmental
protection in China. CRE believes that its operations can greatly
benefit the environment while also earning profits for its shareholders.
The Group has over 600 MW of operating wind farms in Hebei,
Heilongjiang, Gansu, and Inner Mongolia provinces. The electricity
that the Group generated makes it possible to reduce the amount
of electricity generated from coal fired power plants. As a result,
the amount of carbon emissions and pollutants that enter the
atmosphere is reduced. In addition, the Group has a waste to energy
plant in Linyi, Shandong. This plant helps resolving a major garbage
disposal problem in the city, while providing electricity and steam to
end users. As a company in its early growth stage, the Group has
focused its efforts on expanding its renewable energy business; but
as profitability increases, the Group anticipates greater involvement in
sharing some of its profits with the community.

Employees

As at the end of December 2013, the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong and Mainland China employed a total of 67 employees. The
Group had also appointed technical consultants on contract terms
for its alternative energy projects. All employees are remunerated
according to the nature of their jobs, their individual performances, the
Group’s overall performance, and the prevailing marketing conditions.
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Corporate Governance Report
SEEARRE

Corporate Governance Practices

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the “Company”, and
with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) is committed to good
corporate governance principles and practices and its board of
directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) recognises that it is essential
to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers and employees
and uphold accountability, transparency and responsibility of the
Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions and certain recommended best practices set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”), contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
during the year ended 31 December 2013, save for the deviations
with considered reasons as explained stated in the following relevant
paragraphs.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31 December
2013 maintained a balanced board with strong independent element.
The Board currently comprises seven Directors with three Executive
Directors, one Non-executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Each Director possesses expertise and
experience and provides checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of the Group and the shareholders as a whole. In
addition, the Company had maintained three Independent Non-
executive Directors which formed at least one-third of the full Board.
Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships, where
applicable, are set out in pages 34 to 39 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three Independent
Non-executive Directors with at least one Independent Non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors was
assessed in accordance with the applicable Listing Rules. Each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors has provided to the
Company an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.18 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of them are
independent.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERRE (H)

Board of Directors (continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and
performed by different individuals. Under the current organisation
structure of the Company, the functions of CEO are performed
by the Chairman, Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric, with support from the other
Executive Directors. The Board considers that this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company, and has been effective in discharging
its responsibilities satisfactorily and facilitating the Company’s
operation and business development. The Board will review the
structure from time to time to ensure it continues to meet the principle
and will consider segregation of the roles of chairman and CEO if and
when appropriate.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs and
formulating business strategies with a view to maximising its financial
performance and shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities and powers to
the Board committees to assist it in efficiently implementing those
functions specified in written terms of reference.

Decisions relating to the long-term objectives and viability of the
Company, and any acquisitions or disposal of transactions and
investments of any kind with value exceeding the authority of
the Executive Committee set out in its terms of reference or the
threshold for discloseable transactions for the Company as defined
in the Listing Rules from time to time are reserved for the Board;
whereas decisions on matters set out in the terms of reference of
the Executive Committee and those not specifically reserved for the
Board are delegated to the Executive Committee and management,
as applicable.

Directors are provided with sufficient resources to seek independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense and are encouraged to consult with the Company’s senior
management independently. The management provides monthly
management accounts of the Group to the Directors to apprise them
of the Group’s latest performance and financial position.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERRE (H)

Board of Directors (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

Directors are requested to disclose to the Company at the time of
his appointment and in a timely manner for any change, the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and
other significant commitments. Such changes will be updated and
published in the annual and interim reports as appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual
basis.

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors
proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting are first
considered by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria such
as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to
carry out the duties and responsibilities. Having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board, the Nomination Committee will then
be put recommendations to the Board for decision. Details of the
role and function as well as a summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee are set out under the heading of “Nomination
Committee” below.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”), the nearest to but not less than one-third
of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation but are eligible for
re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting provided
that every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. New appointments to the Board are also subject
to re-election by shareholders at the next following annual general
meeting.

All Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company were
appointed with no specific term, but are subject to the aforesaid
rotation requirement in the Articles of Association, accomplishing
the same purpose as being appointed for a specific term pursuant
to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. The rotating Directors who
are subject to retirement and re-election at the 2014 annual general
meeting are set out on page 41 of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 8 July 2013.

Below is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. All
appointments of the members of the Board are made on merit, in the
context of the skills and experience the Board as a whole requires
to be effective. In designing the Board composition, the Company
is committed to equality of opportunity in all aspects and does not
discriminate on the grounds, including but not limited to, ethnicity,
gender, age, cultural and religious background.

The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed the measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and recommended
them to the Board for adoption. During the year, the Committee
reviewed the existing composition of the Board and identified the
key business skills and experience required in line with the business
strategy. It also monitored the review of the Company’s recruitment
process to reinforce its commitment to the principle of equal
opportunity.

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange ideas
on the affairs of the Company. The Board has set up various Board
Committees, among others, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Executive Committee
and the Investment Committee for overseeing particular aspects of
the Group’s affairs. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee are
available on both the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERRE (H)

Board of Directors (continued) EEZgw

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees (continued) BEEENEEZESSR(HA)
During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit #FR X E%Xg  BEXREZE8S  REELZ8ek
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration ZE8&LHRITTNI|eH @ SEFENZ %@E%Z
Committee were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at  EIE RN T -

these meetings is set out in the table below:

Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings eligible to attend

HESEYE SEREEEHEYA
Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
E=ns EEg ERZEES® FMZEES REZEE
Executive Directors $1{TE%
Mr. Ol Kang, Eric /%4 4/4  2/2 (Note Mz¥)  2/2 (Note BizE)  1/1 (Note Ki#E)
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel Z2&57x 54 4/4  2/2 (Note Pif5E)  1/1 (Note BifzE)  1/1 (Note HizE)
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie 3R3Z B 564 3/4  2/2 (Note Bif#F)  1/1 (Note Fif3E)  1/1 (Note Pi&E)

(retired on 1 January 2014)

(R=F—WF—H—HRE)
Non-executive Director X #HTEE
Mr. WANG Sing Tt % 2/4 0/4 N/A 7~ N/A T EF
Mr. HUNG Leung 525t 4 1/2 0/2 N/A @A N/A T3

(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)

(THMALEZEREE)

(appointed on 1 July 2013)

(R=ZF—=F+A—HEZF)
Mr. TSANG Chi Kin @ Z=# L4 1/2 0/2 N/A 7~ N/A T EF

(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)

(ITHELZERESE)

(ceased on 1 July 2013)

(R=ZF—=F+HA—HEFE)
Independent Non-executive Directors B HTES
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ermnest )k 55t 4 4/4 4/4 2/2 1/1
Mr. YU Hon To, David a1/ 5 5t & 4/4 4/4 2/2 1/1
Mr. TIAN Yuchuan B E)II 5t & 3/3 2/2 0/0 0/0

(appointed on 23 April 2013)
(R=ZF—=FWA=+=HEZF)
Mr. ZHANG Songyi 5= 183 %t 4 1/1 2/2 1/2 1/1
(resigned on 23 April 2013)
(RZBE—Z=FNHF=1+=HET)

Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as invitees. Kt - RITEFURHBEAG S EEE S -

BEERREBRAA




Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Board of Directors (continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees (continued)
Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and
include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting. For committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors or
committee members at least three days before the meetings to ensure
that they have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meetings. When Directors or committee members
are unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the
Chairman and CEO prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are recorded
in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the Board and the
committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns raised
by the Directors. Draft minutes of each board meeting and committee
meeting are sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable
time after the date of the meeting. All Directors have access to the
Company Secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that the board
procedures are complied with and advising the Board on compliance
matters.

The Chairman and CEO acknowledged the significance of promoting
a culture of openness and debate among the Board members. To
facilitate the effective contribution of Non-executive Directors, the
Chairman and CEO held a meeting with Independent Non-executive
Directors and Non-executive Director without the other Executive
Directors present in June 2013.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee, chaired by
an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three members
namely Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest, Mr. YU Hon To, David and Mr. TIAN
Yuchuan, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERRE (H)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management,
and reviewing their remuneration packages. In arriving at its
recommendations, the Remuneration Committee will consult
with the Chairman and CEO whenever it thinks fit and take into
consideration factors such as the remuneration paid by comparable
companies, skill, knowledge, time commitment and responsibilities
of Directors. The Remuneration Committee has the responsibility,
powers and discretion to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings to review, inter alia, the remuneration policy and structure
of Directors including those retired and re-elected at the 2013 annual
general meeting of the Company and approve the year-end bonus
and salary increment of the Executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee also approved the remuneration packages of the newly
appointed Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The attendance records of each member at the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during his term of
office are set out on page 19. Details of the Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration for the year are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference. The Nomination Committee, chaired by an
Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three members
namely Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest, Mr. YU Hon To, David and Mr. TIAN
Yuchuan, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year, and the
attendance details of each member are set out on page 19.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board at least annually, identifying
suitable candidates for directorship, assessing the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, and making recommendations
to the Board on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy.
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Nomination Committee (continued)
During the year, the work performed by the Nomination Committee
includes the following:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,;
o reviewing the structure of board committees;

° assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors and sufficient number of independent directors to
maintain a balanced board;

° assessing the qualification and experience of new candidates
for directorship and making recommendation to the Board on
matters relating to the appointment of Directors;

o making recommendation to the Board relating to the
reappointment of the retiring Directors; and

° formulating the Board Diversity Policy, setting the measurable
objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and
making recommendation to the Board on the adoption of the
Board Diversity Policy.

The Company had provided the Nomination Committee sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference which have been updated from time to time to align with
the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit Committee,
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises four
members namely Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest, Mr. YU Hon To, David,
Mr. TIAN Yuchuan, who are Independent Non-executive Directors and
Mr. WANG Sing, who is a Non-executive Director.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERRE (H)

Audit Committee (continued)

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to, inter
alia, review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management procedures, as well as oversee
the adequacy of the accounting and financial reporting resources.
While recognised corporate governance is the collective responsibility
of all Directors, the Board has delegated the corporate governance
functions to the members of Audit Committee who are in an objective
and independent position to oversee the corporate governance
compliance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings
together with senior management and external auditor and two
private meetings with the external auditor without the management’s
presence. The attendance details of each member are set out on
page 19. The major work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year included reviewing interim and annual financial statements,
continuing connected transactions, internal audit reports on the
internal controls and risk management matters, the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance as well as reviewing
and recommending re-appointment of external auditor.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy for employees
to raise concerns, in confidence, with the designated executive who
is accountable to the Audit Committee about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, unlawful activities, or activities violating
the Group’s Code of Conduct and Business Ethics or otherwise
amounting to serious improper conduct and to ensure protection from
possible retaliation against any of our employees who has reported
concerns in good faith.

Executive Committee

The Company has established an Executive Committee with the key
initiatives to manage the Group’s business activities, and oversee
the operating performance and financial position of the Group and
all strategic business units. The Committee comprises all Executive
Directors of the Group. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is the Chairman of the
Executive Committee.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee met regularly
to review the performance of various business units of the Group,
coordinate overall resources, made financial and operation decisions
delegated by the Board, review and develop investment strategy and
policies of the Company and make relevant recommendations to the
Board.
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Investment Committee

The Company has established an Investment Committee with written
terms of reference. The Investment Committee, chaired by Mr. OEl
Kang, Eric, comprises four members namely Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric, Mr.
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy who are
Executive Directors, and Mr. WANG Sing, who is a Non-executive
Director.

The principal responsibilities of the Investment Committee are to, inter
alia, review and approve the Group’s material capital expenditures,
monitor the execution of the investment on an ongoing basis, review
and approve periodically policies and guidelines governing the
Group’s investment portfolio, and monitor compliance with those
policies.

Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors of the
Company and executives, is delegated with responsibilities for
implementing the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from
time to time, and conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group.
Executive Directors and executives meet regularly to review the
performance of the businesses of various business units of the Group
as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operation decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their
powers of management including circumstances where management
should report back, and will review the delegation arrangements on a
periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of
the Group.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiries, the Company has obtained confirmation from all Directors
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by relevant employees, who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in relation to the securities of the
Group, on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 which
give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the
Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In preparing the
financial statements, the Directors have adopted generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong and suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 63 to 64.

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by the auditor
amounted to approximately HK$2,020,000 and HK$822,000
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of interim results
review services, corporate exercise professional fee and tax advisory
services.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Directors’ Training

For the year ended 31 December 2013, all Directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The training programmes included seminars
and courses, reviewed the updated laws, rules and regulations
and materials on topics relevant to the director’s duties and
responsibilities. Directors are requested to provide the Company with
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their respective training record. The areas of training received by each

Director are set out below:

Areas of Training

gl
Directors’
Corporate Law and duties/
strategy and regulatory  governance Risk
Name of Directors business compliance practices management Others
TERKRK HER EERE
BEpE %% ERER ERER EREE Hit
Executive Directors $I{TE%
Mr. Ol Kang, Eric ZE It 4E v v v v
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel 243 5% 4 v v v v
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie Ry Z &4 v v v v
(retired on 1 January 2014)
(RZF—mE—H—HRAE)
Non-executive Director 3 #TES
Mr. WANG Sing T#t %4 4
Mr. HUNG Leung #3544 4
(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)
(FHMEEZERESE)
(appointed on 1 July 2013)
(R=ZFB—=F+A—HEZF)
Mr. TSANG Chi Kin & Z 425 4 v/
(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)
(FHMEEZERESE)
(ceased on 1 July 2013)
(R=F—=F+A—HET)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest B33k 84 4 v v v v
Mr. YU Hon To, David 12 0 v/ v/ v v v
Mr. TIAN Yuchuan B £/ 4 v/ v/ v v v

(appointed on 23 April 2013)
(RZF—=FWA=+=HEZ)
Mr. ZHANG Songyi FREZ 4
(resigned on 23 April 2013)
(RZF—=#MA=+=HFF)
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Directors’ Training (continued)

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and the business
environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. In
addition, the Directors are regularly encouraged to enroll in a wide
range of professional development courses and seminars regarding
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements to enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system and
reviewing its effectiveness, while management is charged with the
responsibility to design and implement the internal control system to
manage risks and compliance. The Group has in place a framework
of internal controls that is consistent with the COSO (the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission) framework
which has the following five components:

‘ Control Environment I

Risk awareness and control consciousness are built into the culture of
the Group.

o RAEEMCEENELBBRRMAREREH

e Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and
high ethical standards to the staff are established.

o RURBABTEREARRHBNERHRIERSBEBRT A -

. Organisation structure, limits of authority and responsibility are set and
communicated to staff concerned.
SESTABRAENE - ) ERREESIE - WHAER 8 TEBLAS -

Risk Assessment

Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risks affecting the
achievement of the Group’s objectives are conducted regularly, forming
the basis for determining control activities.

o EHREA FARIRFEAEEERERZIERR  UmMiERR
TEEIER 2R o

Control Activities

Pollmes and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried

. %\EH%&&F BREIRE 2 IHRIFARIT -

. Control activities include authorisation, approval, performance review,
segregation of duties, asset security, access control, documentation
and records, etc.

o EEEDEERE - Fi - RERE  BEIN
B AT RS o

~N

Information and Communication

. Pertinent information is identified, captured and provided to the right
person in a timely manner.

o ERHR - HEREMBEE A TRIERER -
. Channels of communication across the Group and with external parties
are established.

o BUAKBEHPIZHMUAREIRALZBBRE -

. Channels of communication exist for people to report suspected
improprieties.

o BBBSHTETARLERERE -
Monitoring

- AERE - FEUZ

J

Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance.
FERMREIE R ER -

Close supervision of management and designated executives.
EREEREETHABREEE -

Internal audit activities.

REREZ TIE -

.
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ARTFEANEERESTER  UEREER
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Kl o

A B B4

EESREREASE I ANEERS - T
SERK - MEREA G ERFRHTAR
ERTENERERRBRERESE - XEEB
% 3/ B COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission)42

B2 NEEIERE - AR MR @R

Y

Effectiveness
and efficiency of
operations

EEMERRE

Reliability of
financial reporting
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Internal Controls (continued)

Control Environment

The actions of management and its demonstrated commitment to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices within
the Group are transparent to all. The Group strives to conduct all
business affairs based on good business ethics and accountability.
We have in place a formal Code of Conduct & Business Ethics that is
communicated to all staff members. We aim to build risk awareness
and control responsibility into our culture and regard them as the
foundation of our internal control system.

The internal control system is designed to manage the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and can provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. We
maintain an effective internal audit function, the Internal Control
and Risk Management (“ICRM”) Department, whose main features
include:

(i) independence from operational management;

(i) fully empowered auditors with access to all data and every
operation of the Group;

(i)  adequate resources and well qualified and capable staff; and

(iv)  risk-based auditing, concentrating on areas with significant risks
or where significant changes have been made.

Risk Management

Management has an ongoing process to identify and evaluate the
significant risks facing the Group and prioritise resources to manage
those that arise. Mitigation strategies and plans with respect to each
key risk identified are developed and implemented with regular review
and update, which include establishing or enhancing internal controls.

Heads of the departments, projects and business units regularly
review and analyse the key risks associated with achieving the
objectives of their particular departments, activities and businesses
to provide reasonable assurance that internal controls are both
embedded and effective within their areas of accountability.

Control Processes
The Board maintains a sound and effective internal control system
through the following:

() The Board reviews the Group’s strategic plans and objectives on
an annual basis.
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Internal Controls (continued)

Control Processes (continued)

(i) An organisation structure with defined lines of responsibility and
delegation of authority is devised.

(i)  Systems and procedures are in place to identify and evaluate
risks on an ongoing basis. Senior executives review the risk
assessment process and monitor the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management systems.

(iv)  Appropriate policies and key control activities are maintained
with regular review on their effectiveness.

(v)  Financial performance is analysed against budget with variances
being accounted for and appropriate actions are taken to rectify
deficiencies.

(v  Senior executives ensure compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, standards and ordinances, including Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, the Listing Rules and the
Companies Ordinance, under their responsibility.

(vi)  The ICRM Department reports directly to the Audit Committee
and the CEO, and carries out independent reviews on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system in
accordance with its annual audit plan approved by the Audit
Committee. Key audit findings and implementation progress
of internal control recommendations are regularly reported to
the Board through the Audit Committee. Head of the ICRM
Department also serves as the contact person under the
Whistleblowing Guideline of the Company.

Review of Internal Control Effectiveness

The Executive Directors of the Company conduct reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems, and submit to the Audit Committee a certification of
compliance for effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability
of financial reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations bi-annually. The scope of this review covers the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings and
implementation progress of internal control recommendations, and
opinion of the ICRM Department on the control systems’ performance
of the Group. External auditor also reports on any control issues
identified in the course of their audit work.
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Internal Controls (continued)

Review of Internal Control Effectiveness (continued)

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system at least once each
year and reports to the Board on such reviews.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed and
considered the Group’s internal control system effective and
adequate for the year ended 31 December 2013. No significant areas
of concern that might affect the operational, financial, and compliance
controls and risk management function of the Group were identified.

Inside Information
With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(i) is aware of the obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the applicable Listing Rules and other statutory
regulations with regard to the timely and proper disclosure of
inside information, announcements and financial disclosures
and authorises their publication as and when required.

(i) has adopted and implemented its Inside Information Disclosure
Policy.

(i)  has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing the
securities transactions of those employees who, because of
their positions, are likely to have access to confidential or inside
information.

(iv) identifies and authorises members of the Group’s senior
management to act as the Company’s spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and CEO on Board
or committee matters and to the Head of Legal on administrative
matters. She is an employee of HKC Group who serves both the
Company and its holding company, HKC. All Directors have direct
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary for the
ongoing discharge of their duties and responsibilities. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2013, the Company Secretary took more
than 15 hours of relevant professional training organised by the Stock
Exchange and various professional bodies.

Constitutional Documents of the Company

The Company has published its updated and consolidated version of
Memorandum and Articles of Association at the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. During the year, there was no alteration
on the constitutional documents of the Company.
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General Meeting

The last annual general meeting of the Company was held on 31
May 2013 (the “2013 AGM”). The Chairman and CEO chaired the
2013 AGM. The external auditor attended the 2013 AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor & -+ LAfEE

independence.

The attendance record of the individual Directors at the 2013 AGM is

set out in the table below:

BRERE

ARE E—
=ET-HET(ZZ—Z=ZFRIBFAE]) -
FERTRAHECI - Z=ZFRIBFAEE
fE e ANERBMMEE T -=FRFAFK

ERFBEBFRER_-_Z—=F1H

BERAZE  RBMBSZRmELA

B B ERRMAZBENE LR

T

FEERZ

TG REAFAGZ HERER

Name of Directors EEHA 2013 AGM attended
HE_Z-=FRRBEFAE
(Note)
(P 3E)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric =M A v
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel REIRTE v
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie SR FBE v/
(retired on 1 January 2014) (R-ZZF—pyFE—H—HIRE)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. WANG Sing FiEE X
Mr. HUNG Leung it rpta -
(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing) (EMAELEZEREFE)
(appointed on 1 July 2013) (R=F—=F+H—HEZH)
Mr. TSANG Chi Kin BEfELEAE X
(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing) (FHsEEZEHRES)
(ceased on 1 July 2013) (R-—ZFE—=F+ F— HEE(T)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHTES
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest BB S & 4
Mr. YU Hon To, David BEELE 4
Mr. TIAN Yuchuan BE)IEE 4
(appointed on 23 April 2013) (R=ZF—=FpH=+=HEZHF)
Mr. ZHANG Songyi RIEE LA -

(resigned on 23 April 2013)

(R-—F—=F/ [ —+=HEHE)

Note: Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Director are
required to attend general meetings pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of

Hret - B HBTEERFHTEERRFLE FA

B FANEX EA6.7IKLEIRRAE - FTEE
VHRTEFERIFPTEF LGRS HEREA
E LELXRNARREEH  E—HHFNTEF
AFBEG)NEFMAZLE-F—=FRE
BAFXE -

the CG Code. All Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Director were encouraged to attend the general meeting to inter-face with
shareholders of the Company but one Non-executive Director was not in a
position to attend the 2013 AGM due to overseas commitment.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERRE (H)

Shareholders’ Rights

82

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders can put forward their proposals at an extraordinary
general meeting. Procedures for the shareholders of the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting is
provided for under Article 58 of the Articles of Association.

Under Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any member(s)
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition (“Requisitionists”).
The written request must state the resolution, preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution for the Company’s reference and consideration,
signed by the all Requisitionists concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the head office of the
Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer agent in Hong Kong (the “Branch Share
Registrars”). Upon the Branch Share Registrars’ confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Company will
convene an extraordinary general meeting within two months
after the deposit of such requisition, and will serve sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory and regulatory
requirements to all members of the Company.

Procedures for election of directors of the Company

The procedures for the shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a director of the Company are available
and accessible on the Company’s website at www.cre987.com.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERRE (H)

Communication with Shareholders

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our shareholders
understand our business better. Copies of the annual reports and
interim reports of the Company are distributed to its shareholders
in accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements and also
to interested parties recorded in the Company’s mailing lists. The
publications of the Company, including financial reports, circulars
and announcements, are also available on the Company’s website at
www.cre987.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual directors, and
the poll procedures are clearly explained. The Chairman and CEO,
other members of the Board, the Chairmen of the relevant Board
Committees and the external auditor of the Company attended the
annual general meeting to inter-face with, and answer questions from
the shareholders of the Company.

Shareholders can send their enquiry to the Board by the following
ways:

Post 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

E-mail info@cre987.com

Fax : (852) 2722 1323

HRRZEBE

EEYHE THRERERRERALAEEK
NHREERARBAEEER EEZ IR ©
RABIRBEGI REERT - MRERBIIAA
RIBEFREP 2 BBAALTTRARRER LT
HE o ARRZTIW(BEMBRS BREA
) IR AR BT www.cre987.com Al i &
Bg o
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHREERE

Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric

(Executive Director, Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, aged 43, has been appointed as Executive
Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since
10 April 2008. He also holds several directorships in other members
of the Group and the chairman of the Investment Committee and
Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. OEl was educated in
the USA and obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics (with a
minor in Electrical Engineering), and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. Earlier in his career, he worked with Peregrine
Securities Ltd. and PCCW Limited in Hong Kong, the LG Group in
Seoul and McKinsey & Co. in Los Angeles, USA. Mr. OEl is currently
an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of HKC (Holdings)
Limited (“HKC”, together with its subsidiaries, the “HKC Group”), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the controlling
shareholder of the Company. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of HKC. Mr. OEl is also a director and a shareholder of
Claudio Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of HKC.

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel

(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, aged 50, has been appointed as
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since
1 December 2008. He joined the Group in April 2008 as Qualified
Accountant of the Company. He also holds several directorships
in other members of the Group and is a member of the Investment
Committee and the Executive Committee of the Company. Mr.
LEUNG is a certified practising accountant of CPA Australia. Mr.
LEUNG obtained a Master’s Degree in Business from RMIT University
of Australia. He has over 20 years’ experience in auditing and
finance management with an international audit firm and other major
conglomerates in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LEUNG
was a director of internal control and risk management of HKC. He is
currently also a director of certain subsidiaries of HKC.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EERaREEE(HE)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

(Executive Director)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, aged 53, has been appointed as
Executive Director of the Company since 1 January 2014. He has
been instrumental in raising funds for the Group. Mr. WONG is the
Investor Relations Director of the Group, and is serving as a member
of the Investment Committee and Executive Committee and a director
of certain members of the Group. Since 2007, Mr. WONG has joined
HKC, and is an executive director of HKC. He also serves as a director
of certain members of the HKC Group.

Mr. WONG received a Bachelor’s degree in the geophysical sciences
from the University of Chicago and an MBA from the Yale School
of Management. Before Yale, he worked as a petroleum geologist
at Sohio Petroleum. After Yale, Mr. WONG became an investment
banker at Kidder, Peabody in New York, where he was involved in
project finance. He moved to Hong Kong with Bear Stearns, and was
involved in a variety of corporate finance activities, including some of
the first H share IPOs out of China. Mr. WONG then worked in equity
research at Societe Generale in Shanghai, and later as head of China
Research at Credit Suisse in Hong Kong. Before joining HKC, Mr.
WONG served as a Chief Financial Officer for DVN Holdings, where he
was involved in fund raising and introducing strategic investors to the
company.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EERaREEE(HE)

Mr. WANG Sing

(Non-executive Director)

Mr. WANG Sing, aged 50, has been appointed as Non-executive
Director of the Company since 8 June 2011. He is also a member of
the Investment Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company.
Mr. WANG is a partner of TPG (“TPG”), a private equity investment
firm, an affiliate of Star Butterfly Energy, Ltd. (“Star Butterfly”), which
has substantial interests in the preference shares of the Company.
Mr. WANG is the Co-Chairman of TPG Greater China and Head of
TPG Growth North Asia. Prior to joining TPG, Mr. WANG was Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director of TOM Group Limited. He
spent seven years at Goldman Sachs in both New York and Hong
Kong in various positions including Executive Director and Head of
China High Technology in Hong Kong. He was a founding member
of the firm’s Asian private equity team and headed their China
Investment Projects. Before Goldman Sachs, he was a Manager at
HSBC Private Equity in Hong Kong and a strategic consultant with
McKinsey & Co., in Chicago, U.S.A.

Mr. WANG graduated from Yunnan University, China with a Bachelor
degree in Science and holds a Master of Science degree in forestry
and its relation to land use, a Master and a Bachelor of Arts degree
in philosophy, politics and economics from Oxford University. He
is currently a non-executive director of MIE Holdings Corporation
(stock code: 1555 and listed on the Stock Exchange). He is also
the Chairman of Amerinvest Group of Companies and a Standing
Committee Member of the 11th Yunnan Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREEE(R)

Mr. HUNG Leung

(Alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)

Mr. HUNG Leung, aged 39, is a Principal at TPG (“TPG”) with over
15 years’ experience in investment banking and direct investments in
Greater China. Since joining TPG in May 2006, Mr. HUNG has led a
number of investments in China.

Prior to joining TPG, Mr. HUNG was deputy general manager of
business development and executive assistant to the chief executive
officer of TOM Group Limited (stock code: 2383), a Chinese
language media conglomerate listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, where he was responsible for leading and executing
media and internet related investments and partnership transactions
across Greater China. Mr. HUNG started his career in investment
banking with Barclays Capital where he took part in the financing
and structuring of certain landmark infrastructure deals and pioneer
private equity investments for healthcare and internet/broadband
companies in China.

Mr. HUNG holds a bachelor of science degree in business
administration (magna cum laude) from the University of Southern
California.

Mr. HUNG is also a non-executive director of China NT Pharma Group
Company Limited (stock code: 1011) and an alternate director to Mr.
WANG Sing, a non-executive director of MIE Holdings Corporation
(stock code: 1555), both companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)

ESNEREERE (&)

Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest, aged 63, has been appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 10 April
2008. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
TANG is a solicitor in private practice and at present a partner and a
consultant of two law firms respectively. Mr. TANG graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree of Laws and
is admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Australia. He is
also a China Appointed Attesting Officer by the Ministry of Justice of
China.

Mr. YU Hon To, David

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. YU Hon To, David, aged 65, has been appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 10 April 2008. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. YU is a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in the fields of auditing,
corporate finance, financial investigation and corporate management.
He was formerly a partner of an international accounting firm and
is the Chairman of MCL Financial Group Ltd., a Hong Kong-based
financial advisory and investment firm.

Mr. YU is currently also an independent non-executive director of the
following companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
namely China Resources Gas Group Limited (stock code: 1193),
Great China Holdings Limited (stock code: 141), Haier Electronics
Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1169), Keck Seng Investments (Hong
Kong) Limited (stock code: 184), Media Chinese International
Limited (which is also listed in Malaysia; Hong Kong stock code:
685, Malaysia stock code: 5090), One Media Group Limited (stock
code: 426), Playmates Holdings Limited (stock code: 635), Sateri
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1768), Synergis Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2340) and VXL Capital Limited (stock code: 727). Mr.
YU is also an independent non-executive director of New Century
Asset Management Limited, the manager of New Century Real Estate
Investment Trust (stock code: 1275), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. YU was an independent non-executive director of China Datang
Corporation Renewable Power Co., Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 1798) and TeleEye
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange; stock code: 8051).
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EERaREEE(HE)

Mr. TIAN Yuchuan

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. TIAN Yuchuan, aged 49, has been appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 23 April 2013. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Beijing Foreign Studies University.
Mr. TIAN also obtained an executive education program certificate
from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Management in 2009 and
completed a program in leadership and public policy at University of
Oxford in 2012. He has over 28 years of experience in multinational
business, corporate management, international equity investment
and corporate finance. Mr. TIAN is the executive director and chief
executive officer of CITIC Dameng Holdings Limited (stock code:
1091) and a non-executive director of CITIC Resources Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1205). Both CITIC Dameng Holdings Limited and
CITIC Resources Holdings Limited are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He also held senior positions in several subsidiaries
of CITIC Group between 1986 and 2004. Mr. TIAN was employed as
the Senior Vice President, Corporate Strategy and Development and
served as a director of some subsidiaries of HKC between April 2006
to March 2008.
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

The directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited (the “Company”) have pleasure in
presenting to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) their
report together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activity of the Group is alternative energy business. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associated companies are set out in pages
147 to 150 of the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of
the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 December 2013
by geographical and business segments is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 65 to 66.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Convertible Preference Shares
Details of movements in the share capital and convertible preference
shares of the Company during the year are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company (“Articles of Association”) and there is no
restriction against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2013,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands (as revised), amounted to HK$1,258.45 million (2012:
HK$1,272.27 million).

Five-year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 151 to 152.

Donations
During the year, the Group made no charitable and other donations
(2012: Nil).

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy (appointed on 1 January 2014)

Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie (Vice Chairman) (retired on 1 January
2014)

Non-executive Director
Mr. WANG Sing (with Mr. HUNG Leung in place of Mr. TSANG Chi Kin
as his alternate with effect from 1 July 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest

Mr. YU Hon To, David

Mr. TIAN Yuchuan (appointed on 23 April 2013)
Mr. ZHANG Songyi (resigned on 23 April 2013)

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”),
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest will retire from office
by rotation in accordance with Article 85 of the Articles of Association
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election to serve for
another term. Further, Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy who was
newly appointed by the Board on 1 January 2014, will also retire from
office in accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association and
will offer himself for re-election as director of the Company.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and the Company considers all of them to be independent.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Share Option Schemes

Share options of the Company

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “CRE Option
Scheme”) was adopted on 27 May 2008. Particulars of the CRE
Option Scheme are set out below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

A2

Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high calibre
Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity” or
“Invested Entities”), to recognise the significant contributions
of the Eligible Persons to the growth of the Group or Invested
Entities by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain
ownership interest in the Company and to further motivate
and give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue to
contribute to the long term success and prosperity of the Group
or Invested Entities.

Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior executive
or officer, manager, director (including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the Group or any Invested Entity who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, have contributed or will contribute to the
growth and development of the Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the CRE Option Scheme is 70,978,475 shares which
represent 3.01% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this Annual Report.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share options of the Company (continued)

(d)

(e)

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

()  each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company must not exceed 0.1%
of the shares of the Company in issue and not exceed
HK$5 million in aggregate value.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may
specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board must specify
the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of ten business days from the date
of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid upon
acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of () the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

Remaining life

CRE Option Scheme has a life of ten years and will expire on 27
May 2018 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the
terms of the CRE Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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Share Option Schemes (continued) RS E m)
Share options of the Company (continued) AKNT]ZBRREE)
Movements of share options granted under the CRE Option Scheme 4R - IRIEPEB A RERET2FENER
during the year are as follows: T EBMT
Number of share options
Eb L
Exercise
Qutstanding Outstanding price
Nature of at 1 January Cancelled/ ~ at 31 December  Date of Exercise per share
Names interest 03 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 03 grant period [HKS)
hog-ze #og-z _
-§- _ Gt TR EEL: _ sfE
4 Bite BETE  BRE B BAN ERTE  RHRE it (%7)
Mr, LEUNG Wing Sum, Personal 550,000 - - (350,000) - 20 January 2010 20 January 2011 to 0.764
Samug! Director A 3-EE-fC1 19 January 2013
At (E2) FE-frE
E-CE-RTAR
825,000 - - - 825,000 20 January 2010 20 January 201210 (.764
TEEE-ATTE 19 Januay 20U
RIEAITRE
ZE-TE-ATAR
1,375,000 - - - 1375000 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 to 0764
EEE-ATTR O 19Januay 2015
I
“E-RE-AAR
Mr. CHANG Li Hslen, Personal 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 1 September 2010 1 September 2011 to 0570
Lesle (Directo fiA E-EENA-R 31 August 2013
(et on 1 Jenwary 2014 2-EAA-RE
%ﬁﬁﬁ(i?) ZE-CENR=1-R
(R-2-mE-R-REH)
1,500,000 - - - 1500000 1 September 2010 1 September 2012to 0570
e 31 August 2014
E-IENR-RE
ZE-RENRZT-R
2,500,000 - - - 2500000 1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0570
E-EENA-R 31 August 2015
ZECENA-RE
ZE-1ENA=1-R
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Share Option Schemes (continued) BIRESTE (@)
Share options of the Company (continued) AKNT]ZBRREE)
Number of sharg options
BiREHE
Exercise
Qutstanding Qutstanding price
Nature of at 1 January Cancelled/ ~at 31 December  Date of Exercise per share
Names interest 13 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 013 grant period [HKS)
o8-z H-8-zf )
-§-8 _ Gt R B _ sk
53 g HETR  BRE Bfif BN HETE  REAR i (#7)
An Ex-Director Personal 1,100,000 - - (1,100,000) - 20 January 2010 20 January 2011 10 0764
~HES fA ERE-RCTE S 19Janay 2013
E-E-fIrRE
5-E-RAR
1,650,000 - - (1,630,000) - 20January 2010 20 January 201210 0.764
EEE-ACTR 0 19Januay 201
EIERorEE
ZE-RE-RTAR
2,750,000 - - 2,750,000} - 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 o 0.764
EEE-ATTE O 19Januay 2015
CE-SE-AITRE
- “E-EE-AHAE
Total {531 13,250,000 - - (7,050,000) 6,200,000
Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, exercised, R EXHEHBEEIN  REBEZ_ZT—=F+=-A1

=t HLEFE  SECABRERETEBE
BERBRERT B L - 17 - EHIERK -

cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2013 under
the CRE Option Scheme.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share options of associated corporation of the Company
The existing share option scheme of HKC (Holdings) Limited (the
“HKC Option Scheme”) was adopted on 16 June 20086. Particulars of
the HKC Option Scheme are set out below:

(@) Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high caliber
Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract human resources
that are valuable to HKC and its subsidiaries (the “HKC Group”)
or any entity in which any member of the HKC Group holds
an equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”), to
recognise the significant contributions of the Eligible Persons to
the growth of the HKC Group or Invested Entities by rewarding
them with opportunities to obtain ownership interest in HKC
and to further motivate and give incentives to these Eligible
Persons to continue to contribute to the long term success and
prosperity of the HKC Group or Invested Entities.

(b) Eligible Persons
Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior executive or
officer, manager, director (including independent non-executive
director) or consultant of any members of the HKC Group
or any Invested Entity who, in the sole discretion of the HKC
board, have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the HKC Group or any Invested Entity.

(¢) Maximum number of shares available for issue
The total number of shares of HKC available for issue under the
HKC Option Scheme is 587,875,982 shares which represent
approximately 5.23% of the issued share capital of the HKC as
at the date of this Annual Report.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person
The total number of shares of HKC issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted
in any 12-month period to:

()  each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the shares of
HKC in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of HKC must not exceed 0.1% of the
shares of HKC in issue and not exceed HK$5 million in
aggregate value.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share options of associated corporation of the Company
(continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the board of HKC
may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held

At the time of the grant of an option, the board of HKC must
specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and amount
payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the date
of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid upon
acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares of HKC as stated in daily quotations sheet on
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
prices of the shares of HKC as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share
of HKC.

Remaining life

The HKC Option Scheme has a life of ten years and will expire on
16 June 2016 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with
the terms of the HKC Option Scheme.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share options of associated corporation of the Company

(continued)
Movements of share options granted to the Directors under the HKC

FR - RETEERBEEAIETESZBKR

Option Scheme during the year are as follows: BB
Number of share options
EREzA
Granted on Exercise
Outstanding at 15 April Outstanding at price
Nature of 1 January 2013 Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name of Directors interest 2013 (Note 1) Exercised Lapsed 2013 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
o8-z
R-%-=f  RBAtIR R-g-=F )
-§-8 Bl o ER/ tzp=t-A ) SHiTEE
E 2 BRLE AR (Bit1) Bfif BXM HATE  RHRH fH (B
Mr. OE! Kang, Eric Personal 149,757 - - - 749,757 15December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1,066
i LN ZRTRE 14 December 2016
TZATAR ZERCETCATRAEE
ZE-~E+ZATER
1,249,596 - - - 1249596 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
ZETRF 14 December 2016
tZATHA “3F/\Et-ATRAZ
ZE-ETZRTEA
399,870 - - - 399,870 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
ZEL)E 31 January 2018
ZR-A “EENECA-RE
ZE-N\E-A=t-8
599,806 - - - 599,806 1 February 2008 1 February 201010 1242
ZTTNE 31 Janvary 2018
~R-H “REFCA-EE
25 \E-A=1-A
999,676 - - - 999,676 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
Z5%)\% 31 January 2018
-5-8 “3——F-f-BZ
ZE5-\E-f=1-4
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 15 April 2013 16 April 2014 10 0.269
“E-= 14 April 2016 (Note 2)
BATHA Z5-MENATRRE
ZE-REEATEA
liE7)
- 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 15 April 2013 16 April 2015 10 0.269
“E-CF 14 April 2017 (Note 2)
BATHA Z5-RENATRRE
ZE-tERATOA
liE7)
- 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 15 April 2013 16 April 2016 10 0.269
“E-CF 14 April 2018 (Note 2)
BATHA Z5ENATRRE
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Share Option Schemes (continued) BREE
Share options of associated corporation of the Company KA THE EZEZBREE)
(continued)

Number of share options
HREHR
Granted on Exercise
QOutstanding at 15 April Outstanding at price
Nature of 1January 2013 Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name of Directors interest 2013 (Note 1) Exercised Lapsed 2013 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
Wog-zf
H-%-zf  MATEA H-%-z%
-A-H & B/ fT-A=t-B SRAEE
Bt BikE AT (B1) i BXH WATE REAH fifeH (B
Mr. OFI Kang, Eric Famiy 749,757 - - - 749,757 15December2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
BlfE 5k ELE 14 December 2016
TZATAR “ITCETCATRRE
Z5-RETZATEA
1,249,59% - - - 124959 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1,066
IERNE 14 December 2016
tZA+EA “5E/\ETZATRAE
ZE-RETZATRA
399,870 - - - 399,870 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
R 31 January 2018
ZA-H EENECR-RE
Z5-\§-R=t-B
599,806 - - - 599,806 1 February 2008 1 February 20100 1.242
ZTENE 31 January 2018
ZA-A “E-BECf-PE
ZE-N\E-A=1-8
999,676 - - - 999,676 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 10 1.242
ZRTNE 31 Janvary 2018
Zf-H “F—-f-f-RZ
Z5-)\E-R=r-R
- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 15 April 2013 16 April 2014 to 0.269
“F-zF 14 April 2016 (Note 2)
mATRA ZE-RERATRAR
ZE-~EBATRA
(B2)
- 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 15 April 2013 16 April 2015 to 0.269
“5-ZF 14 April 2017 (Note 2
mATHA ZE-REMATRAR
“E-+EEATRE
(B2)
- 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 15 April 2013 16 April 2016 to 0.269
“-zF 14 April 2018 Note 2)
mATEA ZE-NERATRAR
5 \EEATEE
(B2)
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ExgREE(@
Share Option Schemes (continued) BREE
Share options of associated corporation of the Company KA THE EZEZBREE)
(continued)
Number of share options
HREHR
Granted on Exercise
Outstanding at 15 April Outstanding at price
Nature of 1 January 2013 Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name of Directors interest 2013 (Note 1) Exercised Lapsed 2013 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
H-g-z%
W3-z RBATEA R-B-=F )
-§-8 Bk o EE/ topet-R ) SRR
Bt BikE AT (B1) Xiid BXH HATE REAH fifeH (B7)
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Personal 1,509,484 - - - 1509484 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
Samuel fAA ZELNE 14 December 2016
BBk TZATAA “ITCETCATRREE
Z5-RETZATEA
2,665,807 - - - 2,065,807 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1,066
IERNE 14 December 2016
tZATEA “E5E/\ETZATRRE
ZE-~E+ZATER
533,160 - - - 533,160 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
5%)\% 31 January 2018
Zh-B “EENECR-BE
Z5-\§-R=t-B
799,741 - - - 799,741 1 February 2008 1 February 201010 1.24
R\ 31 January 2018
ZA-A “E-SECf-PE
ZE-NE-A=1-8
1,332,903 - - - 1,382,903 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 10 1.242
ZRTNE 31 Janvary 2018
Zf-H “F—-f-f-RZ
25 \E-A=1-A
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Share Option Schemes (continued) BREE
Share options of associated corporation of the Company KA THE EZEZBREE)
(continued)

Number of share options
HREHR
Granted on Exercise
QOutstanding at 15 April Outstanding at price
Nature of 1January 2013 Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name of Directors interest 2013 (Note 1) Exercised Lapsed 2013 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
Wog-zf
H-%-zf  MATEA H-%-z%
-A-H & B/ fT-A=t-B SRAEE
Bt BikE WAfTE (B1) i BXH WATE REAH fifeH (B
Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie Personal 6,609,440 - - (6,609,440) - 1September 2010 1 September 2011 to 0.443
(retired on 1 January 2014 fAA —5-%f 31 August 2013
Rugts NA-8 Z5—ENA-AZ
(W-Z-1F ZE-CENA=T-R
—A-Bif)
9,914,160 - - - 9,914,160 1 September 2010 1 September 2012t 0.443
—3-%% 31 August 2014
nNA-8 “5-CENA-AE
ZE-RENA=T-A
16,523,601 - - - 16,523,601 1 September 2010 1 September 2013 to 0443
3-%% 31 August 2015
NA-H TE-CEAR-RR
“E-RENA=t-4
- 10,000,000 - - 10000000 15 April 2013 16 April 2014 10 0.269
“E-CF 14 Apri 2016 (Note 2)
mA+EA Z5-MENATRRE
ZE-REEATEA
liE7)
- 15,000,000 - - 15000000 15 Aprl2013 16 April 2015 10 0.269
“E-CF 14 April 2017 (Note 2)
MATHA “E-REMATRRE
ZE-rERATOA
liE7)
- 25,000,000 - - 25000000  15Aprl2013 15 April 2016 10 0.269
5= 14 Apri 2018 (Note 2)
MATHA ZE-EMATRRE
ZZ-)\EEATEA
liE7)
Total £5F 47975706 65,000,000 - (6,609,440) 106,366,266

FEBLERRAARAR

—E = FER



Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share options of associated corporation of the Company

(continued)
Notes:

1. The closing price of the shares of HKC immediately before the date on which
the share options were granted on 15 April 2013 was HK$0.265.

2. The share options will be vested and exercisable subject to the attainment of
the performance target as determined by the board of directors of HKC.

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted to the
Directors, exercised, cancelled nor lapsed by the Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2013 under the HKC Option Scheme.

Directors’ Interests in Securities

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
adopted by the Company were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company:

BT &l
AN TR R B > AR ()

Wiz -

1. BT =FMNATAARHEREN—
H » &FER R W TTIER0.265/8TT °

2. BREAFEZZERREFEMEEZXRE
Btk HEGBRATITE

BREXREEN RBE-_ZT-—=F1+_A
=t HLEFE BARKRUEREBEEEZRE
ERFERMESTRLBERE  TEEFERILT
% EHERER S ERK -

EERNESF 2R
RZE—=F+-A=+—R ZEERARQF
TETRABRARBIRET(EEEE(EE
REHRBAEGRE([EF5 RG] EXVER)
2Bty - RO REFTHEEL S LERAR
FIREESNAERIIEGREATHFEL
Brof 2R RAR - RERIBADR A FARAH
REMRAME T BELHTETAZRETES
R RS RI(RETA ) Z R EANGARRA]
KX Pz e FORRIAT ¢

() REQXTROGREBRGZGFRE

Number of Approximate

sharesand  percentage of

underlying existing issued

shares of share capital of

Name of Directors Nature of interest the Company the Company

HAEXRRE

ARERMD K 2 BITIRA

EEpE ERMtE HERGEHE BMOBE DL

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric Corporate’ 1,836,550,369 77.940
e P NS

Personal® 2,175,086 0.092
EVNG

Joint® 24,724,353 1.049
H[F2

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel Personal* 2,200,000 0.093
RERTE 1B A

Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie Personal® 4,000,000 0.170
(retired on 1 January 2014) & A®

KRB Joint® 570,000 0.024
(RZF—F—H—HRE) e
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Report of the Directors (continued)

EESREE(H)

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued) EENRHF2ER @)

() Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of () RZEAQXTARPREBEROZHFAE :
the Company: (continued) (#&)

Notes: M -

1. Since as at 31 December 2013, HKC was held as to approximately 1. R-DE—=ZF+_-_A=+—H &R
41.61% by Claudio Holdings Limited (“Claudio”) (via its wholly-owned Z & ## i /1 Claudio Holdings Limited
subsidiaries, Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”) and Genesis Capital ([Claudio ) ## 5 #741.61% (BBA 2 E
Group Limited (“Genesis”)), a company owned as to 50% by Mr. WEBAFEZEEBEFR LA ([E#F])R
OEl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50% by his wife, Mrs. OFl ERIEEGRF([EE]])) - fiClaudio
Valonia Lau, Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is deemed to be interested in the HEMSEEHEES0% « B2 T650%8]/
same parcel of shares of the Company in which HKC is interested. B EFEELLHE  WENLEWRE
The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric includes (i) an interest in BREBERFE AR R —HMAR AR
1,275,540,924 shares of the Company held by HKC; (ii) an interest in a GHEEER - BRIEEZ N AR E
6.4% convertible note issued by the Company to HKC with a principal HE () BB R R BT51,275,640,924 R 2K 2
amount of RMB75 million carrying rights to convert into 135,584,558 BIRG#a (i) REA B EEREITE
shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.68 per share LEAAR K 75,000,000, 6.4F A 12
(subject to adjustment); (iii) an interest in 149,358,990 shares of the REE B - W EEF A 112 R 1B AR
Company held by Creator; and (iv) an interest in 276,065,897 shares 0.68 T (] T 8% ) #2142 75 135,584,558
of the Company held by Genesis. RARFIRLG  (iii) BIZEFTF5 149,358,990

BRARNGRG#zm - K(v)E B A
276,065,897 8K 1\ AR (7 # 7 ©

2. The personal interest of Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric represents an interest in 2. FWSEEZ AN 15K 2,175,086/18 K
2,175,086 shares of the Company. NEIR 7w o

3. The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in 3. ML AEZ KRR IEH RS ZFE
24,724,353 shares of the Company jointly held with his wife, Mrs. OEI BL+ HRAIHER 224,724,353 K 1 &]
Valonia Lau. B ©

4. The personal interest of Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel represents an 4. RERAEZAAEZIFHE L X [AXDA]
interest in 2,200,000 underlying shares in respect of options granted BRI —RATE AL - KR AT LB
by the Company as detailed in “Share options of the Company” JRIEH R 2 2,200,000/ HEEGAR 17 1 s

section above.

5. The personal interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an 5. KRUEFLAEZ AN B mIEHE X [ RE]
interest in 4,000,000 underlying shares in respect of options granted ZRERIE ] —EPRTFF AL - NI AIAT IR P
by the Company as detailed in “Share options of the Company” JR1E 2.2 4,000,0008% 165 % (7 1 2 ©
section above.

6. The joint interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an interest 6. RFESEZ R mIEAREARZEF
in 570,000 shares of the Company jointly held with his wife, Ms. WU R K1+ H[FA#HH 2 570,00088 7K 22 @] R
Tung. e o
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ExgREE(@
Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued) EENB S oEE®m)
(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of (i) RZARQATHEBEEERO REERG 2
associated corporation of the Company: HE
Number of Approximate
shares and percentage of
underlying existing issued
Name of shares of the share capital of
associated Nature of associated the associated
corporation Name of Directors interest corporation corporation
HAEEEERSE
HEEEZRHOR 2 BITIRA
HEEEEE EBHE EEME HERG A BHABED L
HKC Mr. OEl Kang, Eric Corporate’ 4,678,014,112 41.612
EBRER =l A& NG
Personal? 44,429,607 0.395
& A2
Joint® 121,608,844 1.082
R
Family* 8,998,705 0.080
ENS
HKC Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel  Personal® 6,931,095 0.062
ERER REIRTE & A°
HKC Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie Personal® 76,437,761 0.680
BEEH (retired on 1 January 2014) NG
SRIESLE Joint’ 27,000,000 0.240

(R-F—mF—H—HRE) KR
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)
(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
associated corporation of the Company: (continued)

Notes:

1.

The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest
in 1,694,419,708 shares of HKC held by Creator and an interest in
2,983,594,404 shares of HKC held by Genesis. Both Creator and
Genesis are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Claudio, a company owned
as to 50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50% by his
wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau.

The personal interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
30,430,902 shares of HKC and an interest in 13,998,705 underlying
shares in respect of options granted by HKC as detailed in “Share
options of associated corporation of the Company” section above.

The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
121,603,844 shares of HKC jointly held with his wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia
Lau.

The family interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in
8,998,705 underlying shares in respect of options granted by HKC
to Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau as detailed in “Share options of associated
corporation of the Company” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel represents an
interest in 6,931,095 underlying shares in respect of options granted
by HKC as detailed in “Share options of associated corporation of the
Company” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an
interest in 76,437,761 underlying shares in respect of options granted
by HKC as detailed in “Share options of associated corporation of the
Company” section above.

The joint interest of Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie represents an interest
in 27,000,000 shares of HKC jointly held with his wife, Ms. WU Tung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company held any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules.

EENEF 2B

(i) RADREEEERORABESDZ
HR (&)
Haz

1. EMEEZRNAE RSB E 2
1,694,419,7088 &8 2R R 7.2 s
LR 2 BB #5.2 2,983,694,404 18 & /5 &
BRI #am o BIZERZEE 3 ClaudioZ
2EWEBRAE]  ZARIHER LRSS
50%  BRT50% A 12 ZFEEZ A+
#E -

2. 2= ) 55 £ 2 8 A ## 25 #530,430,902 I8 &
BRERBR G R R X [ R AEEAE
ZRERIE ] —Eh AT - BB R ATIRH
BRES R 213,998,705 1B RR (7 1

2z

2%
3. ERELEZHFAEZERERZZFEHE

L+ HREFEE 121,603,844 F# 2%
R #a o

4. ML EZ R G158 EX [ A A]E
BoEE 2 BRI | — RO ETaF L - BB
RTEE L+ 2 BEREN R 28998705
FRIBEAAR (7182 ©

5. REBSEEZ AN EZIEHE FX [ R E]
1AL B 2 AR E | —EhFTaF it - BB
SRATIZ B R 1 0 K 2 6,931,095 R 1 [
R o

6. KRB EZ A RIFE L3[R LA]
LB BEARKE | — B R EF L - BB

RATIR BRI 2 2 76,437,761 IR #H
BERR (7 1 ©

7. RUBSEZ A 15 ETFR
L+ HE#HE 227,000,000 & i

B S -

BREXHEEEN RZE—Z=ZF+A=+—
B BMEEAEEHARTDEIRITHRARRAR
B EAT(AREEE (E & R E 5 R ERDI2
XVER) Z B ~ AR REST - FHL DL
BNIRBES R EGIIFE2GATHREZE
Atz EmIAR - AEREBEETRAFAEITE
STRIAE AR B R R 2 R BIAR
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that enabled
the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of
18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy are executive
directors of HKC, and Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel is director
of certain subsidiaries of HKC. Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie was
an executive director of HKC. One of the business activities of the
HKC Group is alternative energy business in the PRC. Apart from
the Company’s business, HKC Group has an interest in a business
in ethanol energy business in the PRC. Having considered that
HKC’s investment in the ethanol energy business is non-core and
the business is dormant at present, the Company can operate its
business independently.

Mr. WANG Sing is a partner of TPG. TPG has an interest in Comtec
Solar Systems Group Limited (Stock Code: 712) which is engaged in
alternative energy business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their respective
associate(s) was interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group during the year.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’
Interests in Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this Report and “Related Party Transactions” in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statement, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities FTERRNHSH 2R

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons (other than a Director RZ-ZT—Z=ZF+=-A=+—H ' BARQRRIREF
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in %5 & & 1§&F] 53366 TR T8 2 &ML
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded inthe % M FAT(EZEHARRTEFTHAERIN)
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO: RARRLZEN RAERGO R A ERSOAR -

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the RAQATRGRHEEROZHER
Company

Approximate
Number of shares percentage of the

and underlying existing issued

Nature of shares of the share capital of

Name interest Company the Company

ﬁ‘izliﬂﬂ_ﬁﬁ

NI 475 2RITIRA

HE B EEMtE HERGOEE BHABESE

HKC Beneficial owner'’ 1,411,125,482 59.886

BEER EmEAAN

Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau Family? 1,838,725,455 78.032
AEL+ ERiS

Joint® 24,724,353 1.049
H[E?

Claudio Corporate* 1,836,550,369 77.940
Al

Genesis Corporate® 276,065,897 11.716
4| ek

Creator Corporate® 149,358,990 6.339
8l AP

Mr. David BONDERMAN Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
David BONDERMAN 4 NS

Mr. James G. COULTER Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
James G. COULTER’ 4 NI

Tarrant Capital Advisors, Inc. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
il

Tarrant Advisors, Inc. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
DAl

TPG Ventures Professionals, LP. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
NI

TPG Ventures Partners, LP. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
NSl

TPG Ventures Holdings, LLC Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
NSl

TPG Star Advisors, LLC Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
NS

TPG STAR GenPar. LP. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
il

TPG STAR. LP. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
DAl

STAR Butterfly Energy, Ltd. Corporate’ 560,000,000 23.765
NI
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities
(continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company (continued)
Notes:

1. The beneficial interest of HKC includes (i) an interest in 1,275,540,924 shares
of the Company held by HKC; and (i) an interest in a 6.4 per cent convertible
note issued by the Company to HKC with a principal amount of RMB75
million carrying rights to convert into 135,684,558 shares of the Company at
the conversion price of HK$0.68 per share (subject to adjustment).

2. Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares
of the Company in which Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is taken to be interested (as
detailed in “Directors’ Interests in Securities” section above).

3. The joint interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest in 24,724,353
shares of the Company jointly held with Mr. OEl Kang.

4. Claudio is beneficially interested in 41.61% of the issued share capital of HKC
(via its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Creator and Genesis) and thus, is deemed
to be interested in the same parcel of shares and underlying shares of the
Company in which HKC is interested. In addition, as Creator and Genesis
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Claudio, and thus, Claudio is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares of the Company in which Creator and
Genesis are interested.

5. The corporate interest of Genesis includes an interest in 276,065,897 shares
of the Company.

6. The corporate interest of Creator includes an interest in 149,358,990 shares
of the Company.

7. The corporate interest includes an interest in 300,000,000 non-voting
convertible preference shares of the Company carrying rights to convert
into shares of the Company at the initial conversion rate of 1 preference
share to 1 share (subject to adjustment) (“Preference Shares”) held by STAR
Butterfly Energy, Ltd. (“STAR”); and a capital commitment right to require the
Company to issue to STAR or its affiliate up to a maximum of 260,000,000
additional Preference Shares (subject to adjustment) at a price of HK$0.75
per additional Preference Share.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2013, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than Directors and chief
executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are required
to record in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Connected Transactions

The Company and HKC entered into a subscription agreement
dated 2 November 2012 relating to the issue of a convertible note in
principal amount of RMB75 million at an issue price equivalent to its
principal amount (“2012 Convertible Note”) by the Company to HKC.
The 2012 Convertible Note, bearing interest at 6.4% per annum, is
due three years from the date of its issuance and is convertible into
a total of 135,584,558 shares of the Company at an initial price of
HK$0.68 per share (subject to adjustment).

HKC is a controlling shareholder and hence a connected person of
the Company, the issue of 2012 Convertible Note and allotment of
new shares of the Company upon conversion of the 2012 Convertible
Note constituted connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the proposed issue of
2012 Convertible Note were set out in the circular dated 23 November
2012. The 2012 Convertible Note was issued to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HKC on 18 December 2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, HKC Group continued to
hold the 2012 Convertible Note.

Financial Assistance and Guarantee to Affiliated
Companies

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has provided financial assistance
to, and guarantee for, affiliated companies in aggregate amount of
HK$165 million, which represented approximately 6% of the Group’s
total assets value as at 31 December 2013.

BAEXS

RAFREBRRN _T——F+—A=R3
VREWRE  NDBEARAIMBBERRE
HEREAGCHEBHTERTASEARE
75,000,000 2 AT R FHE ([ Z T —ZF Al 2
REE]) T - —FaREREBEFE6.4E
EERTABRE-BFEMZEHE AL
LA H EBHRER0.68BT(A FHRE)EiRA
135,584,558 AR A RIS °

AR EBERAARAR ZERREY AL AARA
AlZEEALT Bt - RIELETWRAEI14AZE Y
ME BT —FrEREBARSRRZ
T FARBRERERBEAQBFTERG - HE
RAREBZHBERS - BHBEIT_E— 47
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Management Contract

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Related Party
Transactions” in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
no contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales for the year
attributable to its major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 26%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 61%

Sales

During the year, the Group had two customers only and the
percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the major customers
are as follows:

52%
48%

The largest customer
The remaining customer

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group’s customers noted above.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the year ended
31 December 2013.

Corporate Governance
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 15 to 33.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

ETEeRsEE(@

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code. A Code
for Securities Dealings by Employees has also been adopted in this
regard.

Retirement Benefits Schemes
Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Review of the Annual Report by Audit Committee
The audit committee of the Company comprises three independent
non-executive Directors and one non-executive Director with written
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules, and reports to the Board. The audit committee has reviewed
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the AGM.
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Update on Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change in the
information of the directors of the Company since the date of the 2013
Interim Report is set out below:

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric

(Executive Director, Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. OEI was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of HKC with
effect from 1 January 2014.

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

(Executive Director)

Mr. WONG was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
and HKC on 1 January 2014.

Mr. YU Hon To, David

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. YU retired as an independent non-executive director of TeleEye
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange; stock code: 8051) with effect from 25 October 2013.

Mr. HUNG Leung

(Alternate Director to Mr. WANG Sing)

Mr. HUNG was appointed as an alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing,
a non-executive director of MIE Holdings Corporation (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; stock code: 1555),
with effect from 1 July 2013.

Mr. CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie

(Executive Director & Vice Chairman)

Mr. CHANG retired as Executive Director and Vice Chairman of the
Company and Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of HKC
with effect from 1 January 2014.

On behalf of the Board
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
OEIl Kang, Eric

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB E RS

_a

pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RENEWABLE ENERGY
INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to 150, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BYZHETRE ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014

Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEBARR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_Z—=F+-"A=+—HILEFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FET FAT
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue = 5 113,744 99,513
Cost of sales HE A 6 (71,527) (79,377)
Gross profit ER 42,217 20,136
Other income Eftn g A 7 3,583 1,968
Administrative expenses 1THE A 6 (29,386) (37,462)
Provision for impairment losses VERIEY it 8 - (133,516)
Operating profit/(loss) R, (ER) 16,414 (148,874)
Finance income BAESURA 9 3,351 1,874
Finance costs BbE A A 9 (46,755) (51,174)
Finance costs — net & AN — 55 © (43,404) (49,300)
Fair value gain on derivative liability PTETARBEZ A TERS 2,150 7,140
Share of profits less losses of JE{L B & AN B R A RUE 18
associated companies 20 58,830 80,667
Profit/(loss) before income tax s =R, (&E) 33,990 (110,367)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fris®i (i) % 12 (6,382) 15,648
Profit/(loss) for the year from REFELSEEE 2
continuing operations REERAN(EE) 27,608 (94,719)
Discontinued operations BARIEREEL
Profit for the year from REERIELERE 2
discontinued operations NE i A 35 - 100
Profit/(loss) for the year EEERR(&E) 27,608 (94,619)
Other comprehensive income: Htt2mEWA :
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently AIRAEBEH HDIETIER 2
to profit or loss B H
Currency translation differences [ERIRE =58 45,748 7,734
Release of exchange reserve upon HEDRIEEEFEGRE
disposal of discontinued operations B (2,668) =
Other comprehensive income for AEFEHMEEBA -
the year, net of tax HRBE 43,080 7,734

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for ZNEEZEKA (EIE)
the year w@E 70,688 (86,885)




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

FEEEBARR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-FT-=F+-A=+—ALFE

Profit/(loss) attributable to: LU SR (BE8) -
Equity holders of the Company RRARERFEEA
- Continuing operations — B EET
- Discontinued operations — BRI ET
Non-controlling interests R fE
Total comprehensive income/(loss) LTEMA2EWRA(EE)
attributable to: 4%
Equity holders of the Company AKRAEZRFEA
— Continuing operations — RIS ET
— Discontinued operations —BRIEEEER
Non-controlling interests TR A
Dividends BE
Earnings/(loss) per share from RATERISTE AEMN
continuing and discontinued REBFELSER
operations attributable to ERIELEEK
equity holders of the Company SREF (FHE)
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AR A=)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREAXEF,(FHE)
From continuing operations REFELEER
From discontinued operations KB BRI TS
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share SRBERA(BR)
From continuing operations KRB A T
From discontinued operations REBRIEGEER
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Note
B 5T

14(b)

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
28,194 (82,842)
- 100
28,194 (82,742)
(586) (11,877)
27,608 (94,619)
71,028 (75,254)
- 196
71,028 (75,058)
(340) (11,827)
70,688 (86,885)
1.20 (3.51)
1.20 (8.51)
1.06 (3.51)
1.06 (8.51)




Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEEREXR

As at 31 December 2013
R-_T-=F+_A=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Construction in progress
Prepaid land lease payments
Intangible assets
Prepayments and other receivables
Interests in associated companies

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventory
Trade and other receivables
Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of disposal group classified
as held for sale

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Note
=2
&E
EREBEE
L E - T YN 16
EEITR 17
FEf L & F0E 18
mEE 19
TR 0B I H b R 22
REEE R R 2 s 20
ERBEEARE
REBEE
T8
7 LS BR 30 % EL b B LUK 22
SZ PR 28 & 23
BeRBECEEY 24
BEFEZEEHEEE
35
REEEAE
BEMAE
s
AAFESEHEABGERAE
L f#%E
& A 25
{1 26
RATERIEEAELERS
IR ER
RN

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHIT
900,845 931,317
251,884 69,341
13,147 14,319
6,053 6,398
57,132 -
1,095,487 1,099,031
2,324,548 2,120,406
6,571 6,389
99,628 141,327

- 1,014
271,050 238,213
377,249 386,943
- 12,381

377,249 399,324
2,701,797 2,619,730
26,564 26,564
1,761,767 1,690,567
1,788,331 1,717,131
3,042 3,382
1,791,373 1,720,513
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

RREERBRE)

As at 31 December 2013
R-_T-=F+_A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M FHET FET
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FERBEMS
Bank borrowings RITER 27 562,236 552,247
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEMSHAE 29 39,940 41,546
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBEEEE 602,176 593,793
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FEAS BR 3k e E A FE A 3R 31 133,998 38,851
Derivative liability PTETABE 30 36 2,150
Current portion of bank borrowings SRITIE SR BN 27 72,258 70,897
Convertible note EIEi) e 28 101,956 93,519
308,248 205,417
Liabilities of disposal group classified BERFEZEREHRZEE
as held for sale 5 - 7
Total current liabilities REAERAE 308,248 205,424
Total liabilities BEAEH 910,424 799,217
Total equity and liabilities ERREEHAE 2,701,797 2,519,730
Net current assets REEEZE 69,001 193,900
Total assets less current liabilities EELEBERRBERS 2,393,549 2,314,306
OEIl Kang, Eric LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
= RER
Director Director
BFE BFE

China Renewable Energy Investment Limit?gl/
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Balance Sheet

BEERR/X

As at 31 December 2013
RZZE—=F+-_A=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M FHET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N INEPNCIP: o 21 12,283 12,197
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables i & WK 22 281 702
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR KT /B 1 R R IE 21 1,513,296 1,492,658
Cash and cash equivalents HERREZEY 24 25,407 42,125
Total current assets rnaEER® 000000 1,638,984 - 1,535,485
Total assets BEHARE 1,551,267 1,547,682
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves attributable to AATERFEA
equity holders of the Company BiERAR F#E
Share capital RE AR 25 26,564 26,564
Reserves i 26 1,258,454 1,272,269
Total equity A 1,285,018 1,298,833
LIABILITIES a&
Current liabilities FBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHT B A T FRIE 21 162,330 150,147
Derivative liability TETEGE 30 36 2,150
Other payables HEMERR 31 1,927 3,033
Convertible note AR EE 28 101,956 93,519
Total current liabilities HREBEEAR 266,249 248,849
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEHAE 1,551,267 1,547,682
Net current assets REBEERE 1,272,735 1,286,636
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRABAE 1,285,018 1,298,833
OEIl Kang, Eric LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
= RER
Director Director
EF

B BERRREERAT




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgEX

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-FT-=F+-A=+—ALFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

NG SSEN
Employee
share-based Non-
Share Share  Exchange compensation Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity
EERH

Ba  KiEE  EARE 0 BRER  RHRE  REEW AF FEREE  RRAE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

ThEL TEL Thn TEL Tin TERL T TEL ThRL

Balance at 1 January 2012 RZE——F-A-Hz&H 26,564 993,505 123,755 3,205 6,261 638,992 1,792,282 15,209 1,807,491
Loss for the year rEEFR - - - - - (82,742) (82,742) (11,877) (94,619)
Other comprehensive income: ~ EA2EMA :
Currency translation differences B BEZEE - - 7,684 - - - 7,684 50 7734
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EWA / (Bi8) 45 - - 7,684 - - (82,742) (75,058 (11,827) (86,885
Transactions with owners HERARTZRA
Employee share option benefits B B RERA = = > %) - = (9) = (%)
Reversal of equity component of BRI ARZHERSHA

convertible note - - - - (6,261) 6,261 - - -

Balance at 31 December 2012 ~ R=E-Z5+ZA=1-H

A 26,564 993,505 131,439 3,112 - 562,611 1,717,131 3,382 1,720,513
Balance at 1 January 2013 R-Z-Z5-f-H
a3 26,564 993,505 131,439 3112 - 562,511 1,717,131 3382 1,720,513
Profit for the year KEERT - - - - - 28,194 28,194 (586) 27,608
Other comprehensive income: ~ Eft2EMA :
Currency translation differences R HEEE - - 45,502 - - - 45,502 246 45,748
Release of exchange reserve LERKIHIE SR
upon disposal of discontinued RILERRR
operations - - (2,668) - - - (2,668) - (2,668)
Total comprehensive income 2ERALE - - 42,834 - - 28,194 71,028 (340) 70,688

Transactions with owners BREAETZRE

Employee share option benfits B EEETREEH| - - - 172 - - 12 - 172
Lapse of employee share option ~ {EE BRI
benefis - - - (1,339) - 1,339 - - -

Balance at 31 December 2013 ~ R=E-Z£+=f=1-H
k33 26,564 993,505 174,273 1,945 - 592,044 1,788,331 3,042 1,791,378

70 China Renewable Energy Investment Limitgegr

Annual Report 2013




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_Z—=F+-"A=+—HILEFE

Cash flows from operating activities REXEBCHESRE

Cash generated from/(used in) operations &% 718/ (FTA)E &

Mainland China taxation paid B AR B R PR IE

Net cash generated from/(used in) s ans S(FTA)
operating activities REFE

Cash flows from investing activities RETHZHERE

Interest received B E

Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE

Addition to prepayments NEBE TR RIE

Purchase of property, plant and equipment B A 472 - #8521 3545

Purchase of construction in progress BAEELRE

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  HE&EE - #E KL EE
and equipment F1S 78

Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash SREIR R, (3Em)

Dividends received from B Uk & A R B

associated companies

Net cash (used in)/generated WEER(FTR),/ s
from investing activities RE T

Cash flows from financing activities RETEH2HESRE

Repayment of bank and other loans BEFTREMERR

Repayment of convertible note BRI MR R 1R

Proceeds from issuance of convertible note #7T A # j& Z= 15 B 15 7018

Proceeds from bank loan RITE B RIEA

Interest paid BERFE

Net cash used in financing activities A EEETRIR S ERE

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash R R IRESZEWE N~

equivalents (R ) F5E
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BzB&ek
ReEEY
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes VEREhE) 7 L&
Cash and cash equivalents Rt+t=—A=+—HB2
at 31 December REeRBELEEY
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ _-_A=+—H2Z
RERRESEFEY
Cash and cash equivalents of disposal BEEGEZEREMR Y
group classified as held for sale RERRESFEY

Note
(=

34

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
117,841 (88,348)
(8,762) (9,720)
109,079 (48,0_6_£§)
3,258 2,058
- (376)
(56,527) -
(319) (463)
(77,971) (22,803)
2 1,188
1,014 (12)
85,527 89,626
(45,016) 69,2_1_8_
(72,897) (70,897)
- (91,338)

- 93,195
66,663 -
(42,248) (48,488)
(48,482) (117,528)
15,581 (96,378)
250,594 343,402
4,875 3,570
271,050 250,594
271,050 238,213
- 12,381
271,050 250,594
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

T2

General information

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the “Company” or
“CRE”) is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability. The address of the registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are
principally engaged in alternative energy business. The Group
has operations mainly in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC).

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”).
The ultimate holding company is HKC (Holdings) Limited
(“HKC”), a company incorporated in Bermuda and listed in Hong
Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ thousand or
HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements were approved by the board of directors for issue on
20 March 2014.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of a derivative liability, which is carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

China Renewable Energy In\{egm nt Limit&-:g/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHHEHME @)
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RUEEE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures EREE R E

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)

Annual improvements
project

Consolidated financial
statements

Disclosure of interests in
other entities

Fair value measurement

Financial instruments:
disclosures — offsetting
financial assets and
financial liabilities

Consolidated financial
statements, joint
arrangements and
disclosures of interests
in other entities:
transition guidance

Presentation of items of
other comprehensive
income

Separate financial
statements

Investments in associates
and joint ventures

Annual improvements to
2009-2011 cycle

Except as described below, the adoption of these
above standards and amendments to standards
have no significant effects on the Group’s financial

information.

The Group adopted HKFRS 10 on 1 January 2013.
The accounting policy for subsidiaries will be revised

as follows:

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a)

74 China Renewable Energy Inv§§jm

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)

The Group assessed that adoption of HKFRS 10
did not result in any change in the determination of
control over its subsidiaries.

The Group also adopted HKFRS 12 on 1 January
2013 which included the disclosure requirements for
all forms of interests in other entities.

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
under HKFRS for all fair value measurements. HKFRS
13 does not change when an entity is required
to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on
how to measure fair value under HKFRS when fair
value is required or permitted. The application of
HKFRS 13 has not materially impacted the fair value
measurements carried out by the Group and the
disclosure.

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce a grouping
of items presented in other comprehensive income.
Iltems that could be reclassified to profit or loss at
a future point in time now have to be presented
separately from items that will never be reclassified.
The adoption of these amendments affected
presentation only and had no impact on the Group’s
financial information.

New and amended standards, and interpretations
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2013 but not currently
relevant to the Group (although they may affect the
accounting for future transactions and events)

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Government loans
HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee benefits

HK (IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping costs in the

production phase
of a surface mine
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHEHEHME@)
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 HmBEEEHE)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures BB EEEREE(E)
(continued)
(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations () BEMER=Z—=F—H—

have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2013 and have not
been early adopted

BRBTRFERARER - B
W MIB R IR FRTER - &
IR KRR

THIER| - BRI Z BT Rk
BLEhz  BEARAEE—
T-ME—A A&
2 & =t HA g A& HA i o i R
B EAREEWEIRRRS

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

The following standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 or later periods,
but the Group has not early adopted them:

S LERS
Rz et BmEN
HKAS 19 (2011) (Amendment) ‘ Defined benefit plans: employee contributions 1 July 2014
BAGHEANE19R(Z2—F)(BFTK) RERAHE - BEHFK —Z-NE+A-A
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: presentation 1 January 2014
} - offsetting financial assets and financial liabilties
BAGTEAERR(BITAK) SRTA: ZH-HHEcREEREREE “T-mE—-A—-A
HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of assets - recoverable amount disclosures 1 January 2014
BB ERE36R (BT A) BERE - BB E e ENRE —Z-MmE-H—-H
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial instruments: recognition and measurement 1 January 2014
} - novation of derivatives
R EREACCHEN) SRTA  BARGE-TETAMNER —Z-mFE-A—-H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments - (hedge accounting and Not yet announced*
} amendments to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39)
BAMBRERAER SRIE-(WrEdt REBUBRSEAEN - HE o VNN

HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)
(Amendment)
BEBRBREENF10% 125 R

FR A REIE2TR (=2 —— ) (B5T4)

IR ER BT KB A GEREI9N 2 BRI A)
Consolidation for investment entities

REBBOAH

1 January 2014
—¥-B%¥-A-H

HK(IFRIC) Int 21 Levies 1 January 2014
FE(ERMBREREZEE) BE —Z-NE-A-H
-RBEA1R
Annual improvements project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle 1 July 2014
FEYCERA HERMBREEN -_F-FEE-_FT-—FAHN —E-NELA-A
FEIE
Annual improvements project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle 1 July 2014
EEYCERR HEBUBREEN _Z——FZ_T-=FFHN —Z-ME+A-B

FENE

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016
BB REEIF145% EERTRR —E-RFE-A-H
# The original effective date of 1 January 2015 is removed # REMBH_ZT—RF—H

and it will be set once the other phase of HKFRS 9 is

completed and finalised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

76

2.1

(©

New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2013 and have not
been early adopted (continued)

The Group has not early adopted the new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation,
which have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning 1 January 2013. The
Group has commenced an assessment of the related
impact, but is not yet in a position to state whether
any substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and presentation of the financial information
will be resulted.

2.2 Consolidation

(@)

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jm

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amount of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the fair
value of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Inter-company transactions, balances and income
and expenses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests,
the difference between any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

78

(b)

(c)

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jm

Transactions with non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associated
company. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss
of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s interests in associated companies includes
goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c)

Associated companies (continued)

The Group’s share of its associated companies’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in
the profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associated
company equals or exceeds its interest in the
associated company, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associated company.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated companies are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associated
companies. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associated companies have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in interests in
associated companies are recognised in the profit or
loss.

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the directors of
the Company who make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation

80

(a

(b)

(c)

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jm

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”).The
Company’s functional currency is Renminbi and the
Group’s presentation currency is Hong Kong dollars
to facilitate analysis of the financial information of the
Group, which is listed in Hong Kong.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the profit or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (continued)
(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in equity.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associated company that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associated companies that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence)
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2

FTESHBRME @)
(c) HEEMAF(HE)
iy FEEZFREELZE
HREM2ERARSE
R -

(d)

RERAE - HBREEREINE
BEREFE  BEREMIE
ERHPZERENEERTA
i B A B O B 3 Z BT AR A
melas o BERHENHE —
HBINETEHRR A By - AR
THMENZBESHEER
SRTEIA/HERERER

HEB Y ©

RKBEIIRRMELZEHE
RAFERE - GRIEZEI
RAZEERAERIE - WA
BEAZWMERGRE - rE
HZER ZRARESTER -

HEBNEBRED HE

R EEINER(BHEARE
BREINET 2 2R - 3
BREREH —MEREEINER
MM B AR IR HE
FFREEH —HAFBINE

BOBMERRIZERTENL
HE)R  RARBRERE

A T T b 25 0 B 3
AR 2EEN S EER
wE -

AR B EX REHALE
BAERBEBIEBZHMBA
Bz R hItE - B OIS R 5t
PE S ERE T IE
#xm ATEBZRAER -
shAT A E A Ef oy & (BDEDR
AEBREBE R Z R E
& MTIEEHAKERES

FENME - AR
REtENEZEEN I BEESR
%o

BARRRERRLA

B ]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

FESTBRBE @)

25 Yk #ERRE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising leasehold
improvement, plant and machinery, motor vehicles and
furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method, to write off their
cost less the residual values over their estimated useful
lives or remaining useful lives for those second-hand
assets and the estimated useful lives are as follows:
Electricity utility plants Shorter of the remaining
operation period or 20 years

Other plant and machinery 5 years

Shorter of the lease period or
5 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 3-5 years
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount
of the asset or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within other income in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Construction in progress

All direct and indirect costs relating to the construction
of property, plant and equipment including borrowing
costs during the construction period are capitalised as the
costs of the assets, which are classified as construction
in progress. On completion, the construction in progress
is transferred to property, plant and equipment at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. No depreciation
is provided on construction in progress until such items
as the relevant assets are completed and available for
intended use.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent prepayments for
leasehold land held under operating leases, which are
stated at cost and subsequently are amortised in the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
or when there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in
the profit or loss.

Intangible assets

(a) Concession right
Concession right acquired in a business combination
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
The concession right has a finite useful life and is
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over its concession right period
of shorter of the remaining operation period or 20
years.

(b) Computer software

Computer software separately acquired is shown
at historical cost. Computer software acquired in
a business combination is recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
computer software over its estimated useful live of
2-5 years.

2

FESTBRBE @)

2.6

2.7

2.8

EEIR
FIEREEAREYZE - #S KRR
B EENRBzEERBERAN
(BREEERE)  €@8RNLIEAE
ERA  THEAEREIR R
TITHRATIEEESZYE KB R
BB RAKAERREIREEES]
iR T2HEEIRFENE B
EEREEETKILAERERZ
Bk o

LB ERE

BN EAEFRNBBREEEE
FAZHEE L2 RN FRIA - K
AEFIR - RERARERNAERZE
EREREE - HHERBE R
EEHERGERTHE -

BVEE

(a) HFE
MNEBA GHBIZPER 255
BIRWEE A ZAFERER -
Rt ERFHAR - BK
ZfER R 5T 8 85 RORLE I Bk o
BIENRIESARRGETER
H20F (ABREERE)LE
RORFTHE ©

(b) EEEMA
38 3L W 2 B B B IR SR A
AOER - REBAFHBEPE
EREHRKEERZA
FEMHER - BN 2 #H A
BREDBEEMR M ZKAE
HAF A EAFEH = R F5r

o
= o
>t

BERRRERRAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

84

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and non-financial assets
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Disposal groups held-for-sale and discontinued

operation

Disposal groups are classified as assets held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through
a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable.
They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that
either has been disposed of, or that is classified as held for
sale, and (a) represents a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations; and (b) is a part of a
single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations; or (c) is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Discontinued operations are carried at the lower of
carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. Any gain or
loss from disposal of a business, together with the results
of these operations until the date of disposal, is reported
separately as discontinued operations. The financial
information of discontinued operations is excluded from
the respective captions in the consolidated financial
statements and related notes for all years presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHHEHME @)

(continued)

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and loans and receivable. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date - the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the profit or loss. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

_ 86

2.11

Financial assets (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the profit or loss within other
income, in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the profit or loss as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired.

2.12 Financial guarantee policy

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jm

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due, in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees
are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of subsidiaries or associates to secure loans,
overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was
given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
and the Company’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with HKAS
18, and the best estimate of the amount required to settle
the guarantee. These estimates are determined based
on experience of similar transactions and history of past
losses, supplemented by management’s judgement. The
fee income earned is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability
relating to guarantees is reported in the profit or loss within
other operating expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.13 Derivative financial instrument
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value at each balance sheet date.
The change in the fair value is recognised in the profit or
loss.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses. It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The amount of the provision
is recognised in the profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against other expenses
in the profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to other income in the
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

_ 88

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.16 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

2.18 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.19 Convertible preference share
Convertible preference shares are classified as equity
that can be converted to share capital at the option of
the holder. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Convertible
preference shares are recognised initially at the fair value.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associated companies operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limit&egl/

Annual Report 2013

FESTBRBE @)

2.16 EAERREMELR
P R 3R B AL T A S AR IR A T
R - HL 1A AT I 5 SR
RAE R -

217 ReERBEEEY
EREReRERY  HakRe
SEMREFHEES  ROTBART
K HEMERERIBAAS=EAHAT
ZHEEBRRALIRE  UARIRITE
i °

2.18 A&
TR DERER o BITHRMO K
IBARE 2 BRI RAR « &
=AY ATSRIE 2 HRIEE (k%
FIE) o

2.19 ATRIRE KK
ABMEETERY B RED - HFAA
ERBEA BB - BITHR
MAEREZEREHERKA
RSP 5 BB REZNEIAR
(FIRRBIR) - AT K AR 1 0R 1%
N EER -

2.20 EMIRIEEFREHR
HARBERXEEMRERA -
BMER WA RKER - EMELEAE
H2MPATBRREXEER
MR ZEBBBARRI - EULBER
T BETSEEEMEEBKATRE
RRE R E RSP IER

EHAEHAXARNEENE A A
REERBRERELEBRRTKRA
ZBEREEAHTHERMKESRM
ZHBAGIGE - EEEEHIE
R B F i 2 HAEDIRT G R
R AHEERBER T REHRER
BB N Z R AR ERE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHHEHME @)

(continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associated
companies, except for deferred tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or difference taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group
comprise convertible notes that can be converted to share
capital at the option of the holder, and the number of
shares to be issued does not vary with changes in their fair
value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

90

2.21

Convertible note (continued)

The liability component of a compound financial instrument
is recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability
that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity
component is recognised initially at the difference between
the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a
whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any
directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to their initial
carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of
a compound financial instrument is measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not re-
measured subsequent to initial recognition except on
conversion or expiry.

When the note is converted, the relevant equity
component and the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred
to share capital and share premium for shares issued.
When the note is redeemed, the relevant equity portion is
transferred to retained profits.

2.22 Borrowings

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jm

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHHEHME @)

(continued)

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed.

(a) Employee leaves entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Defined contribution plans
The Group participates in a mandatory provident
fund scheme (“MPF”) and employee pension
schemes established by municipal government in the
PRC for the eligible employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC respectively.

The Group’s and the employees’ contributions to the
MPF comply with the related statutory requirements.
The Group has no further payments obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF are expensed as incurred
and are not reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave MPF prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available. The asset of MPF is held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered
funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.24 Employee benefits (continued)

92

(b)

(c)

(d)

Defined contribution plans (continued)

The Group’s contribution to the employee pension
schemes in the PRC is at a percentage in compliance
with the requirements of respective municipal
governments.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits when it
is demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate the
employment of current employees without possibility
of withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period are discounted to their present
value.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan in which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions which are included
in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable and remaining
an employee of the entity over a specified time
period) and including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save). At each balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable based on
the non-market vesting performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the profit or loss,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHHEHME @)

(continued)

(d) Share-based compensation (continued)
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. In respect of the potential obligations to
dismantle the wind farms at the end of their useful lives, the
Group would assess the obligations continuously based on
the latest changes in the laws and regulations and make
provision when the recognition criteria are met.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the provision of services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of business tax within the Group and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not considered
to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating
to the sale have been resolved. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.26 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Revenue from alternative energy is recognised based
on power dispatch during commercial operation.
Commercial operation starts when obtaining a
Power Purchase Agreement, safety certificate
from the State Electricity Regulatory Commission
(“SERC”) or Provincial Grid Authority, and 240 hours
commissioning.

(i)  Revenue from Clean Development Mechanism
(“CDM?”) is recognised when the counterparty has
committed to purchase the carbon credits, the sales
prices have been agreed, relevant electricity has
been generated and transmitted, and it is probable
that the carbon credits will be entitled.

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(iv) Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.

2.27 Operating leases as lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

2.28 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that
outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

2.29 Dividend distribution

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jm

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved.
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3

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, price risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s major
financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other payables, derivative liability, bank borrowings and
convertible note. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes.

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes. The only derivative
the Group entered is related to an equity transaction with
STAR Butterfly Energy, Ltd. (“STAR”) as disclosed in Note
25(a).

The Board of Directors focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial transaction and
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency.

The Group currently does not have any foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
of the Group monitors the foreign exchange exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2013, if US dollars and Hong
Kong dollars had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against Renminbi respectively, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before tax would
have been HK$2,360,000 higher/lower respectively
(2012: loss before tax HK$7,337,000 lower/higher).
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Price risk

_ 96

3.1

(c)

(d)

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jm

The Group is exposed to price risk in relation to
the subscription right of convertible preference
shares granted to STAR. As at 31 December
2013, if the share price of the Company increased/
decreased by 5%, the Group’s profit before tax
would have decreased/increased by HK$18,000 and
HK$13,000 respectively (2012: loss before tax would
have increased/decreased by HK$400,000 and
HK$360,000).

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk due
to fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate.
The Group’s results and operating cash flows are
dependent on changes in market interest rates.

The Group does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposures should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2013, if interest rates had been
100 (2012: 100) basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit
before income tax would have decreased/increased
by HK$6,049,000 (2012: the Group’s loss before
income tax would have increased/decreased by
HK$6,231,000) after interest capitalised.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in its restricted
cash, cash and cash equivalents, prepayments and
trade and other receivables, and financial guarantee
provided for credit facilities granted to certain
associated companies.

The carrying amounts of restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other receivables
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

To manage the credit risk associated with restricted
cash and cash and cash equivalents, most of the
deposits are placed with certain state-owned banks
in the PRC which are high-credit-quality financial
institutions and banks with high credit rankings in
Hong Kong.

To manage the credit risk associated with trade and
other receivables, the Group adopts risk control
measures to assess the credit quality, to determine
credit limits and approve credit of customers,
taking into account their financial position and past
experience. The Group has monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.

The Group is exposed to significant concentration
of credit risk in terms of electricity sales as the
Group’s sales of electricity were made to state-
owned provincial power grid companies. The Group
normally does not require collateral from trade
debtors. It normally grants credit terms of 30 days to
these power grid companies. However, part of the
trade receivables due from the power grid companies
relate to government subsidy which are subject to
the government allocation of the tariff surcharge
for renewable energy. Based on past experience
and industry practice, these tariff premiums are
generally paid in 6 to 12 months from the date
of the sales recognition. Ageing analysis of the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in Note 22.
Management makes periodic collective assessment
as well as individual assessment of the recoverability
of trade and other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of the overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and whether
there are any disputes with the relevant debtors.
The Group’s historical experience in collection of
trade and other receivables falls within the recorded
allowances and the directors are of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has
been made.
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HERBRERE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 H¥EEZEE)
(e) Liquidity risk (e) mEELEE
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to MENE & B AR EE RN
meet its current obligations when they fall due. The BVERES R iR BT R E 2 A
Group measures and monitors its liquidity through b o AEEBEEEBEFRD
the maintenance of prudent ratios regarding the BB (PIERBEE B
liquidity structure of the overall assets, liabilities, B BREEAE) ZRERE
loans and commitments of the Group. The Group tER - HERERHRHES
also maintains a conservative level of liquid assets to BS o bbo - REB TR R
ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet FEENRRAKT - AEREA
any unexpected and material cash requirements in HRWRERE - BAERNAB
the course of ordinary business. B A2 A A R B8 TR ORI 3k
BEANBREHFE -
During the year, the Group complied with all FAN - AEBEEBHBRBIN
externally imposed loan covenant requirements to HEEERMNEK -
which it is subject.
The following table details the Group’s and the TRAJNAEBRNEEB S/
Company’s contractual maturity for its financial BEZEHNIEH - TR2E
liabilities at the balance sheet date. The table has TRABEIZARUBRERERER
been drawn up with reference to the undiscounted AEBEEEEEEFIEZRTR
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest AEAmARE o BRERTTEFI -
date on which the Group is required to pay. Except ARERRFETK - R+
for bank borrowings, balances due within 12 months BARRNRZ EHREEREER
equal their carrying balances as the impact of HfE -
discounting is not significant.
Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2and>5 years 5 years Total
£ -E@E ZEDf RENE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAL TAL TAL TAL
Group r&E
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=%&
t=ZR=1-H
Bank borrowings RITHER 112,561 114,961 313,320 275,068 815,910
Trade and other payables ERETR
Hi e 133,998 - - - 133,998
Convertible note RRER 101,956 - - - 101,956
Financial guarantee B2 (R 164,978 - - - 164,978
At 31 December 2012 RZB-—%
T-A=t-H
Bank borrowings BOER 112,329 107,331 292,004 304,437 816,101
Trade and other payables ERETR
AR 38,851 - - - 38,851
Convertible note MaRER 93,519 - - - 93,519
Financial guarantee HBER 727,160 = - - 727,160
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A mRME (&)
3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HKEBEE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HHEMEZEE)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued) (e) FHEBELRE(E)
Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2and 5 years 5 years Total
—£R —-ZWE ZEIE RENE by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT T
Company Y N

At 31 December 2013 =5

‘I' A=1-H
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENHBARZE 162,330 - - - 162,330
Other payables Hi R 1,927 - - - 1,927
Convertible note BRRERE 101,956 - - - 101,956
Financial guarantee B ER 74,176 - - - 74,176
At 31 December 2012 WZE—-F
+-A=1+-H
Amounts dug to subsidiaries ERHEBARZEA 150,147 - - - 150,147
Other payables AR 3,033 - - - 3,033
Convertible note BRRZERE 93,519 - - - 93,519
Financial guarantee BHSER 559,247 - - - 559,247
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEkER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEMEBREAZRE RREAK
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going BRHEEERBIEN  BRB/M

RiEHEBERSEMERESTA

concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and A §
5 AR - 34 R R E AR

benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

. _ BIEMRIEE KA
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group monitors capital by reviewing the capital NEFBFBRTERREEIEE
structure. The capital structure of the Group consists Ko BN EEERRRATR ZS
of debt and equity attributable to equity holders of the REZERRBOEETRAD
Company, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Emi A ARG $%@Q%

BEERAREZHBRAR - B

The Group (?on3|ders the COSF an.d the I’IISk assomat.ed o R A AEE R
with the capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital BEEE T RS BT
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends 215 BB T AR 1 BE ] o

paid to shareholders, issue new shares or conduct shares

buy-back.

The Group maintains its gearing ratio within the reasonable ARBRBERE  KAKEER

range according to the Group’s strategy. RELFERREIREER -

BERRRARRAHE 99




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HKEBEE®
3.2 Capital risk management (continued) 3.2 EXEREREHE)

The gearing ratios as 31 December 2013 and 2012 were RZE—=FR=_FT—Z—F+=H

as follows: =t+—HZERABELERNT :

Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT
Current borrowings BN TR 174,214 164,416
Non-current borrowings IEREE I 562,236 552,247
Total borrowings EEN L 736,450 716,663
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and B BRERBEEEED
restricted cash AR ZBR$I3R & (271,050) (239,227)
Net debt position B FREAR M 465,400 477,436
Total equity AR 1,791,373 1,720,513
Gearing ratio BEREBELR 26.0% 27.7%
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFELE

100

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

— Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

= Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jment Limitgegr
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

mEMBHRRME(E)
3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 HKEBEE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 A¥EME(#E)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December
2013.

TREIWR=_ZFE—=F+=A
=t BAEBERATEAECE
EREE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E— =t E=4 HEt

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET FET FET

Derivative liability PTHETEAE®E - 36 - 36
The following table presents the Group’s assets and TREIWR=_ZFE—=—F+=A

liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December
2012.

Level 1
F—R
HK$'000
FHET

Derivative liability PTETEA®E —

=St BAKERATEAEZE
ERAE-

Level 2 Level 3 Total
F_R E=R FEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TET TAET TAT

2,150 = 2,150

The fair value of financial instruments that are not in
an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

- The fair value of the derivative liability is determined
using the Binomial model.

The carrying values of restricted cash, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables approximate their fair values due to their
short maturities.
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102

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(@) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, prepaid land lease
payments and interests in associated companies
The Group tests whether property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, prepaid land lease payments and
interests in associated companies engaged in the
alternative energy businesses (“Alternative Energy
Projects”) have suffered any impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable in accordance with
the accounting policy in Note 2.9. The Group reviews
certain indicators of potential impairment such as actual
electricity dispatched, tariff of electricity, market unit price
of Certified Emission Reduction (“CER”) and other general
market conditions.

If an indication of impairment is identified, the need for
recognising an impairment loss is assessed by comparing
the carrying amount of the assets, to the higher of (i) the
fair value less cost to sell, and (ii) the value-in-use on a
project-by-project basis. The fair value is either determined
by referring to recent transactions or by independent
valuers whenever appropriate. The value-in-use of the
assets represents estimated future cash flows from the
continuous use of the assets, and requires complex
assumptions and estimates such as future electricity
dispatched, tariff of electricity and CER and discount rates.
The discount rates used to discount the estimated future
cash flows are based on the relevant industry sector risk
premium and the gearing ratio.

Limited
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ERGEERHE o

4 Critical accounting estimates and 4
judgements (continued)

During the year, the Group has performed impairment
assessment on the Alternative Energy Projects. The value-
in-use calculation was based on the key assumptions,
including (i) tariff increment at approximately 3% per
annum based on management’s expectation on market
development and general inflation, (ii) improvement in
volume of electricity dispatched based on the operational
feasibility reports and historical performances, and (iii)
assuming the contributions from CER is of negligible
amount. The pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash
flow projections are between 11.06% and 13.37% per
annum.

Based on the impairment assessment, the recoverable
amounts of subsidiaries operating wind farms and interests
in associated companies are higher than their respective
carrying amounts.

With all other variables held constant, if there is 2%
tariff increment throughout the operating period, the
profit before taxation would have been decreased by
HK$53,326,000 (2012: loss before taxation would have
been increased by HK$89,098,000). Similarly, with all
other variables held constant, if the volume of electricity
dispatched is 10% less than management expectation,
the profit before taxation would have been decreased by
HK$223,087,000 (2012: loss before taxation would have
been increased by HK$230,261,000).

Management of the Company and its subsidiaries
determine the estimated useful lives, residual value and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on projected wear and
tear incurred during power generation. This could change
significantly as a result of technical renovations on power
generators. Management will adjust the estimated useful
lives where useful lives vary with previously estimated
useful lives. It is reasonably possible, based on existing
knowledge, that outcomes within the next financial year
that are different from current assumptions could require
material adjustments to the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(c)

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jm

Acquisition of subsidiaries

The initial accounting on the acquisition of subsidiaries
involves identifying and determining the fair values to
be assigned to the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquired entities. The fair
values of investments in associated companies, property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments and
concession right are determined by reference to market
prices or by using financial models. Any changes in the
assumptions used and estimates made in determining the
fair values, and management’s ability to measure reliably
the contingent liabilities of the acquired entity will impact
the carrying amounts of these assets and liabilities.

Fair value of derivative

The fair value of derivative recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be derived from active markets. It is determined
using option pricing model. The inputs to these models,
including dividend vyield, risk-free rate and share price’s
volatility, are taken from observable markets where
possible. A degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential tax
exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will affect the income tax and deferred
tax provision in the period in which such determination is
made.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of
the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of receivables and management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer.

Limited
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4 Critical accounting estimates and 4 EBEAZ:HERHE @

judgements (continued)

CDM income is determined by the electricity volume
generated, emission reduction factors and unit price of
CER. The volumes of electricity transmitted to the grid
companies are subject to the verification and certification
by an agent appointed by the buyer. The final settlement
of CDM income will only occur after verification and
certification by an agent. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in estimating the expected volumes
of CER certification and the probability that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity.

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM”) has been
identified as the directors of the Company (the “Directors”). The
Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance, allocate resources and make strategic decisions
by business segment. Subsequent to the discontinuance of
the software development segment, the Group has one single
operating segment, namely alternative energy. Although the
alternative energy segment consists of different locations of
power plants in the PRC, the CODM considers that these
underlying power plants are subject to similar risks and returns.
Therefore, it has only relied on the reported revenue associated
from these underlying power plants in making financial decisions
and allocating resources.

The Group’s revenue is primarily derived from the generation of
electricity.

The Directors assess the performance of operating segments
based on a measure of segment results and share of profits
less losses of associated companies. This measurement basis
excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure from the
operating segments, such as provision for impairment losses.
Fair value gain on derivative liability and other corporate
expenses are also not included in the segment results as they
mainly represent the income and expenses arising from the
holding companies. Other information provided to the Directors
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
financial statements.

Total segment assets exclude corporate assets which are
centrally managed. Corporate assets mainly include cash and
cash equivalents, other receivables and prepayments held by
the head office.

BRERBBIBATDREELE
B RHRERRZEREEMLE
BMEE - MEMAAGHEHANE
B ARBAERZENKRERRK
%E o ARBEREHWAREN R
BERERIEREEE - RfAFHTR
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TR E AR HIE -
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R - DEEBERREHREIRE - R LE
BHHRAENESER  AEBERBEE—KED
BB BVEREER - BEEREREBELN
RETRMWEZEER  TELERRA
RA - WEREREREYEERRKE
HeRAY EELPBREREDEER
B HERBERLSHABZXEREH 2O
s et o

AEBRRTEREEE -

EERD A RE KRG Z R ERNRE
BB EEEDRRI - FEEE
TEEGEDMIRTFURIZFE - f
W OREBIERE STAETARBZAF
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B RESEIEARKAZERARZK
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Segment information (continued)
The segment information provided to the Directors for the
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2013

and 2012 are as follows:

Revenue

Segment results

Provision for impairment losses

Share of profits less losses of
associated companies

Finance income

Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year

Depreciation
Amortisation
Provision for impairment losses

Wi

PHRE
REBRARE
EEBEAREMEBR

BHRA

FSHAERN/ (BR)
PR (Xih) /%

AERER/ (BR)
e

3
REBRRRE

5 oEER @)
RBE_Z—Z=Z6R_Z—_+-A
ST —HILEFEE  RESREGHETZ2HK
Az AEBERAT
2013 2012
—E-=f “E-—fF
Continuing Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operations operations  operations
R& BALE BE BRIE
Rexn  KEXH Rexlh  BEEK
Total Total
Alternative Software  reportable ~ Alternative Software  reportable
energy development  segments energy  development segments
2R 25
EREER  BAER  SB&H BRER  REFEE o8
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TER THL THEL THEL
113,744 - 113,744 99,513 - 99,513
30,451 - 30,451 4,410 (42) 4,368
- - - (133,516) - (133,516)
58,830 - 58,830 80,667 - 80,667
2,373 - 2,373 837 142 979
(41,981) - (41,981) (48,520) - (48,520)
49,673 - 49,673 (96,122) 100 (96,022)
(6,173) - (6,173) 15,248 - 15,248
43,500 - 43,500 (80,874) 100 (80,774)
61,001 - 61,001 60,446 - 60,446
1,384 - 1,384 9,885 = 9,885
- - - 133,516 - 133,516

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jment Limitgeg .
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE PR RME (&)
5 Segment information (continued) 5 oEER @)
The segment assets as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as R =K —_T——F+_-_fA=+—
follows: AZDEfEENT
2013 2012
—E-=f “E-—F
Continuing Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
operations  operations operations  operations
& BALE BE BRIE
Rexy  KEXH REXH  BEEHK
Total Total
Alternative Software  reportable  Alternative Software  reportable
energy development  segments energy  Development segments
T2H M2H
ERER  BAER  SB&H EBRER  BEFEE S8
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER THEL THEL THEL
Total segment assets NHEELE 2,675,598 - 2675598 2464016 12,381 2,476,397
Total segment assets include: PHEEREDS
- Interests in associated —~RBEARZER
companies 1,095,487 - 1,095487 1,099,031 - 1,099,031
- Additions to non-current assets  —REIEREEE 240,619 - 240,619 21,717 - 21,7117

A reconciliation of profit/(loss) for the year of total reportable
segments to profit/(loss) for the year of the Group is provided as

A E2WMD AT 2 AFEHEN,(FBER)HE
AREAFZ RN (BR)HERNAT :

follows:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Profit/(loss) for the year of total reportable AIE| DB 4BET 2
segments REERM,(FE) 43,500 (80,774)
Unallocated amounts: RAOMEH
— Fair value gain on derivative liability —TETIABEZ
NFEM 2,150 7,140
— Other corporate expenses, net —Hi D ERATFHE (18,042) (20,985)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF,(EE) 27,608 (94,619)

BERRRERRAR
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 2EER@)
Reportable segment assets are reconciled to total assets as 2R/ LBEEHREELBEEELNT -
follows:
2013 2012
—E—= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHTT
Total segment assets SDENEELAE 2,675,598 2,476,397
Corporate assets: EEE :
— cash and cash equivalents — B4 RREEEY 25,741 42,396
- others —HAth 458 937
Total assets BERE 2,701,797 2,519,730
The total non-current assets by geographical location are B[R 2D 2 IERENEELEY T -
detailed below:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT
Hong Kong BB 116 185
The PRC s 2,324,432 2,120,221
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 2,324,548 2,120,406
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s BHE _-_ZT—=F+_-_A=+—HIF
revenue for reportable segments from external customers of B AEBKRKBINAZEEZAIZ2HH Y
HK$113,744,000 (2012: HK$99,513,000) is only attributable to W2k A113,744,0008 L (=& — —F :
the China market. 99,513,000/ 70 &R B R A5 °
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has two BE—T—=&+-A=+—HIEE
customers with revenue exceeding 10% of the Group’s AEEARERE(—E——&  WER
total revenue (2012: two customers). Revenues from B+ Bl i A £ M 4 1% > 10% o
these customers amounting to HK$113,744,000 (2012: B EE S > U3 B 113,744,000 7T
EK$99,513,000) are solely attributable to alternative energy (—Z——%: 99,513,00087T) + ALK
usiness.

BERRERER -
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Expenses by nature

Auditor’s remuneration

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Net exchange losses

Employee benefit expenses (including directors’
emoluments)

Operating lease rental

Repair and maintenance expenses

Corporate expenses

Legal and professional fees

Management service fee

Other expenses

Total cost of sales and administrative expenses

Other income

Clean Development Mechanism income
Gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations

Others

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

6 BEHUEBEEIZEX
2013 2012
—E—= —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT T
ZEEE S 2,020 2,020
FE {5t 1 b SR 6 923 1,132
S E Y 515 8,825
Y% - S REETE 61,016 60,457
b X 518 5 58 2,280 641
EERFAX
(BREEEMS) 16,075 19,333
wefHERe 2,100 2,331
HERRERX 2,090 3,191
PERY 1,033 1,404
FEREEEA 1,484 2,907
EEREE 1,026 1,414
HAbp 10,351 13,184
SHEKRARITE RBE 100,913 116,839
7 HfslA
2013 2012
—E-=F —EF——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERT FHTT
VB R B R A - 1,102
HEWE - WEREE
Frisdeas - 807
S BRI E T
Fri5das 2,668 =
Efh 915 59
3,583 1,968

BERRRERRAR

109




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

110

Provision for impairment losses

Provision for impairment losses on
— concession right
— prepaid land lease payments

Finance income and costs

Finance costs:
— interest expense on convertible note wholly
repayable within 5 years
— interest expenses on bank borrowings not
wholly repayable within 5 years
Less: amount capitalised in construction in
progress (Note)

Finance costs

Finance income:
— interest income on bank deposits

Finance costs — net

Note: The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed and used for the
construction of wind farms was between 6.03% and 6.55% per annum

in 2013.

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jment Limitgegr
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8 WBEFERE

2013 2012
—E-—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHBTT
THEIB 2R EE R
— RFET - 130,783
—JERt L E A - 2,733
- 133,516
9 HBWARBMERA
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——%F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHBT FHBTT
BB A
—BRAFREIEEZ
ABRRERZFERE (5,724) (2,654)
—BANRAFAZIEER
ZIRITERZMERAZ (42,831) (48,520)
B ERIRENME R
(BzE) 1,800 -
B & R AR (46,755) (51,174)
R ¢
— RT3 F B A 3,351 1,874
BhE AR — FEE (43,404) (49,300)

£6.55% °

Hiet « R—F—=F BAERCELEARA
RIERE 15 2 BT E AR E B EFF6.03%
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10 Directors’ and senior management’s 10 EERSHEEEHM

remuneration
(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ E=M=
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 BREERNHBE_ZE—=%F1+_A8
December 2013 is set out below: =+—HIEFENFMOT :
Employer’s
Salary & contribution
other Discretionary ~ Share-based  to pension
Fees benefits bonuses  compensation scheme Total
HeR Bikeita
Name of Director EEf? e HthiRA WA RoRE  ZEXER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FEn FEn FEn FEn FEn
OF! Kang, Fric Bl 75 1,021 85 - 15 1,19
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie RUE 75 1,021 - 163 15 1,274
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel PEK 75 1171 147 9 15 1,417
WANG Sing T 75 - - - - 75
TANG SiuKui, Emest Bk 150 - - - - 150
YU Hon To, David R 150 - - - - 150
ZHANG Songyi® K% 46 - - - - 46
TIAN Yuchuan® HESIK 104 - - - - 104
750 3,213 232 172 45 4,412
The remuneration of every director for the year ended REENEE-_T——F+=A1
31 December 2012 is set out below: =+—HIEFEZEHEMOT :
Employer's
Salary & contribution
other  Discretionary  Share-based to pension
Fees benefits bonuses  compensation scheme Total
HeRk RiceatEl
Name of Director g e AfigHl B RigE  ZEEER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
OEl Kang, Eric &l 16 1,073 - - 14 1,162
CHANG Li Hsien, Leslie RYE I 1,073 - 382 14 1,544
YUNG Pak Keung, Bruce!" R 54 1,804 - 14 9 1,881
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samue! PUR 75 1,146 93 180 14 1,508
WANG Sing T 75 - - - - 75
TANG SiuKui, Ernest Bk 150 - - - - 150
YU Hon To, David aEE 150 - - - - 150
ZHANG Songyi® RIEZ0 150 - - - - 150
804 5,096 93 576 51 6,620
Notes: Mt
) Resigned on 18 September 2012 (1) R-E——#F 1 A1/ HEFHF
@ Resigned on 23 April 2013 @ R-ZE—=F/H —+=HEF
® Appointed on 23 April 2013 © REZFE—=FNA -+ =HEZ
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10 Directors’ and senior management’s 10 EEREREEETF M@
remuneration (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEEMEAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in FR - AEEREEEHFALE %

the Group for the year include three directors (2012: four)
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2012: one) individual during the year, which fell within
emolument band of less than HK$1 million (2012: less than

HK$1 million), are as follows:

=Z(=T——%F: m@%?
E2MEEREXEFZH WF&
Mo FREMNBTRA(ZZE—=
F:—Z)EARALTZEE 4R
B2 H1,000,0008 T (ZF—=
£ © 411,000,000 7T ) © 5% B
ST -

2013 2012

—E-= —F—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBT FHBTT

Salaries and other benefits %ﬁ%&ﬁ’rﬁl?@ﬂ 1,388 703
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRFTEIH R 30 14
1,418 717

11 Employee benefit expenses

11 EEBAMAX

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Wages, salaries and other benefits I& - #HehEMETR 14,364 18,056
Share-based compensation, net IR (EF 58 172 (93)
Provision for/(write back of) RERAFERZ
unused annual leave B (BE) 43 (282)
Pension costs — defined BIREKA — R
contribution plan (Note a) ARG B (i EEa) 1,496 1,652
16,075 19,333
Notes: Hfet -
(@  The Group’s contribution to the employee pension scheme in the PRC (a) ANEFEFEESRKSFEIELZ H#T

is at a percentage in compliance with the requirements of respective
municipal governments. The Group also participates in the MPF
scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$25,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

TIt PRI T T HLE 2 B 57 FIEH ° K
FEEIIRIEE B & AL EEEA 5B
REBEBIROIEEZIESIRREEDT
2 - BB ECHBIGTAATHEZE
BEHTRINGE o IRIFRESETE] - BEE
KAE B 19781%FE IE S THEIA E.2 5% [FI5T
BIfEH 5% - 1EFAZHHBAALE ERA
25,0008 7T ° 5T &|1EH 2 5 B1As 53
RIEEFTE °

(b) Contributions totaling HK$23,000 (2012: HK$26,000) were payable (b)
under the MPF scheme at 31 December 2013.

R-F—=FF+=-—A=+—H  REE%HE
DEFEIA T2 @A #£23,000/8 T
(ZZF——4F : 26,000/87T) °
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12 FREH(XH) ER
el 74 75 4 B 45 7 3 4 8 SR B B - B3
EHREBAEBEHBB(—T——4F
) o R BRSBL T IRIE S PO (5B R B
A =R BB A B 26%:t H ©

12 Income tax (expense)/credit
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profit for the year (2012: Nil). Taxation
on PRC profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at 25%, which is the rate of taxation prevailing

in the PRC.
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fix FH&T
Withholding tax on dividends BRI B ZTEF (9,017) (9,720
Deferred income tax credit BLEFSHE S 2,635 25,368
Income tax (expense)/credit FTis®i(Z ) % (6,382) 15,648

Note: Hiat -

JE 5B & 2 A] 2 BT 13 % 3% 14 /3 10,630,000 &
T (=ZF—=F : fr{ZH# £ 7516,381,000/F
7;;) - THET A K& B FE (T A 7].2 RS

REE KB FELE X 2 IS BLAD A
FlA(BR)2HE  BEBAEHEER
MERZ B FARRAERTZER

The share of income tax expense of associated companies of
HK$10,530,000 (2012: income tax credit HK$16,381,000) is included in the
Group’s share of profits less losses of associated companies.

The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax from
continuing operations differs from the theoretical amount that
would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to

profits of the consolidated entities as follows: I ZFOT
2013 2012
—E—= —ET—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FBT
Profit/(loss) before income tax FTiS i A= ),/ (8518) 33,990 (110,367)
Less: Share of profits less losses B B R AT 2
of associated companies i R B B (58,830) (80,667)
Less: Fair value gain on derivative liability W STETABGEY
N ERE (2,150) (7,140
(26,990) (198,174)
Tax calculated at the domestic rates applicable &4 BEIZ 5% | Frid BB
to profits in the respective countries AR E 2 IR 5,298 43,592
Expenses not deductible for taxation purpose Tz FAX (3,559) (3,985)
Income not subject to tax BEGRRZ WA 1,136 677
Tax losses not recognised RERZTRIAEE (800) (3,183)
Utilisation of previous unrecognised tax losses R ZAIRERLZ
MIAEE 1,067 -
Deferred tax on undistributed profits RO F 2 BEEFIE
and fair value difference MAFEESR (507) (11,763)
Withholding tax on dividends BRAR S ZTEINF (9,017) (9,720)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTisRi(Z ), e (6,382) 15,648

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 19.6% (2012:

22.0%).

F:22.0%) °
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13 Loss attributable to equity holders of the 13 ZAATERFTEAELER

Company

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt RARBRBEREBIEZ AR AE=FER

with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of ANJE(HE1E A54,041,0008 L (2 ——

HK$54,041,000 (2012: HK$75,718,000). 4 1 75,718,000/ 7T ) °

14 Earnings/(loss) per share 14 BREBF (FE)

(a) Basic (@ ER
Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the BREARF(EE) HZARA A
profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company EiEE AEMRET(E18) B A
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in FARETEERMNEFHEGE -

issue during the year.

2013 2012
—E—= T
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations RARERIFE ARG
attributable to equity holders of the REFELEEBL 2
Company (HK$ thousand) wm AL (R (FET) 28,194 (82,842)
Profit from discontinued operations ARARIERIFE ARG
attributable to equity holders of the REBRIEGEER 2
Company (HK$ thousand) w A (FH&T) - 100
28,194 (82,742)
Weighted average number of ordinary B BT T AR T HE
shares in issue (thousand) (1) 2,356,372 2,356,372
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents BEARBF (EE)
per share) (FBA)
From continuing operations REFELEER 1.20 (3.51)
From discontinued operations KBRS TS - -
1.20 (3.51)
(b) Diluted (b) #E
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by adjusting BREERF,(EE)HERAR
the weighted average number of ordinary shares RAELTRRNETHHAE  H
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential AEREMEAEBEEREYE Y
ordinary shares. In 2013, the convertible preference shares AR ERR - RZE—=F 7
are assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares. BBRELERFERERELARAER

A% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

R IR R R ()
14 Earnings/(loss) per share (continued) 14 BREF,(EE) @
(b) Diluted (continued) (b) #H&E)
2013 2012
—E—-=F T
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations RARERFE AEIGRE
attributable to equity holders of the REBEEER 2
Company (HK$ thousand) wmAL (BE) (FHT) 28,194 (82,842)
Profit from discontinued operations AArERFEE AEGRE
attributable to equity holders of the BERIEREER 2
Company (HK$ thousand) w A (F#&T) - 100
28,194 (82,742)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares = 317 & A% hitE T 19 81
in issue (thousand) (Fh%) 2,356,372 2,356,372
Adjustment for: AT & IE T -
— Assumed conversion of convertible — BRER AR B AR B
preference shares (thousand) HAR () 300,000 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Fi i st & & AR E & 7 2
for diluted earnings per share (thousand) jtﬂﬁﬂxﬂuﬁngf]§y(:FH§) 2,656,372 2,356,372
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents &ER&#sER T (BE)
per share) (&FR%ANL)
From continuing operations REFELEE 1.06 (3.51)
From discontinued operations REBRIEEEET - =
1.06 (8.51)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the year ended 31 HE-_ZT—=F+"A=+—H1t
December 2013 did not assume the exercise of the share FEZEREERN (BE) L E
options, convertible note and the subscription rights for RBERNRARITEZEARRE - AT
convertible preference shares outstanding during the year i =18 K Al R AR (B St ik 2 RS &
since the exercise would have an anti-dilutive effect. 1 RAABBITEREERE
BEE o
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the year ended 31 HE-_T——F+=-—A=+—HL
December 2012 did not assume the exercise of the share FE2EREE(FE) RN E
options, convertible note, convertible preference shares R FARAKITE 2 BARE - AT
and the subscription rights for convertible preference fREE - ATRRE LR R A BRE
shares outstanding during the year since the exercise KRz RBREEITE J?l%ﬁﬁﬁ
would have an anti-dilutive effect. TESEEREESE
15 Dividends 15 RE
No dividend was proposed and paid for the year ended 31 BHE-_T—=F+=-A=+—HLEFE"
December 2013 (2012: Nil). WEERTERMEARE(ZE—Z5F

®)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A mRME (&)
16 Property, plant and equipment 16 Y13 - B KREE
Electricity ~ Furniture,
Leasehold  utility plant fixtures and Motor
improvement  and others  equipment vehicles Total
HENE REE HE - %E
Group rEE %6 R K&t RE by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx THT THT THT THT
At 1 January 2012 R=E--%-A-H
Cost A 2,260 1,049,194 950 1,811 1,064,215
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ ZEHTE A (879) (68,094) (374) (535) (69,882)
Net book amount REFE 1,381 981,100 576 1,276 984,333
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE-E-CF
TZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 1,381 981,100 576 1,276 984,333
Currency translation differences EHAEEE 2 7,353 1 3 7,359
Additions NE = 343 120 - 463
Disposal HE = (349) - (32) (381)
Depreciation ik (750) (58,847) (354) (506) (60,457)
Closing net book amount FREERE 633 929,600 343 741 931,317
At 31 December 2012 RZB-Z&+ZA=t-H
Cost A 2,277 1,057,711 1,074 1,792 1,062,854
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZEHMERRE (1,644) (128,111) (731) (1,051) (131,537
Net book amount REFE 633 929,600 343 741 931,317
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-%-=f%
TZA=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount ERERE 633 929,600 343 741 931,317
Currency translation differences ERAEES 8 24,977 5 15 25,005
Additions NE - 304 15 - 319
Transfer from construction in progress BAEEIR - 5,265 - - 5,265
Disposal & - - (45) - (45)
Depreciation ik (641) (59,901) (104) (370) (61,016)
Closing net book amount FREEFE - 900,245 214 386 900,845
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-Z+=A=+-H
Cost A 2,342 1,092,780 1,050 1,499 1,097,671
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2 TE KA (2,342) (192,535) (836) (1,113) (196,826)
Net book amount REFE - 900,245 214 386 900,845
Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s ETHRTEXRITBEASEEERE
property, plant and equipment with carrying values of HK$887.0 887,000,000 & v ( = & — = F :
million (2012: HK$916.0 million) (Note 27). 916,000,000/ 7T ) 2 & T3 « #as kR

IR (FIEE27) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

17 Construction in progress

At 1 January 2012 R_F—
Currency translation differences bE iR E
Additions NE

At 31 December 2012 R=F—
At 1 January 2013 R_F—
Currency translation differences bE iR E
Additions NE
Transfer to property, plant and equipment 2R =Y
At 31 December 2013 R=-F—
Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s

construction in progress with carrying values of HK$251.4
million (2012: HK$6.5million) (Note 27).

18 Prepaid land lease payments

At 1 January 2012 R_ZT—
Currency translation differences fEHRE
Amortisation e 5H
Impairment loss REBE
At 31 December 2012 R-ZF—
At 1 January 2013 R=—F—
Currency translation differences ME 5k
Adjustment FHEE
Amortisation B 5K

At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—

Notes:
(a) Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s prepaid
land lease payments with carrying values of HK$12.9 million (2012:
HK$14.1 million) (Note 27).

(b)

The prepaid land leases payments were held on lease of 50 years in
Mainland China.

17 EEIRE

Total
et
HK$’000
T

47,851
613
20,877

69,341

69,341
4,640
183,168

E L] (5,265)

=F+-A=+—H 251,884

=

ETROTEBERIDBAAEEKRE A
251,400,000 % 7w ( = & — = &F
6,500,000/ 70) 2 & T T2 EHE A
(ftzE27) ©

18 FEMNLHBEERR

1j:t

HK$’000

FHETT

—_#—AH—H 18,057

== 127

(1,132)

(2,733)

—F+=-—A=+—H 14,319

=F—H—H 14,319

EEE 381

(630)

(923)

=F+-A=+—H 13,147
B3t

@ EFRTEXDHAEDFEE

12,900,000 & ;v ( = & — = #F :
14,100,000/8 7T ) 2 & F & {4 1 1 7 B 3¢
HEH (15527 ) »

FET L 57 B RT3 BILA BE AR #5250
FHRFFE -

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

19

118

Intangible assets

At 1 January 2012

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2012

Opening net book amount

Currency translation differences

Additions
Amortisation
Impairment loss

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2012
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2013

Opening net book amount

Currency translation differences

Amortisation

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2013

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and

impairment

Net book amount

R-2—-%—-A—H
DN
REtEEIRE

FREDFE

BE-Z——F
+=—BA=+—RBILLEE
FREFE

P i =5

NE

g

VERIEN SEi!

FRREFE

R-E——F
t=A=t+—H
DN
Rt H MORE

FREDFE

BE-ZE—=F
+-A=+—HLEE
FHREFE

b R

B 5

FRIREFE
R=-ZB-—=F
+t=RA=+—H
AR
REt#ELRE

FREDFE
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19 EBEE

Computer Concession

software right Total
BB Y HFRT R et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T THBT THBIT
408 202,678 203,086
(187) (68,298) (568,485)

221 144,380 144,601

221 144,380 144,601

7 1,022 1,029

376 - 376
(116) (8,709) (8,825)
- (130,783) (130,783)

488 5,910 6,398

791 204,254 205,045
(303) (198,344) (198,647)

488 5,910 6,398

488 5,910 6,398

9 161 170
(112) (403) (515)
385 5,668 6,053

803 210,018 210,821
(418) (204,350) (204,768)
385 5,668 6,053




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MK mRM ()
20 Interests in associated companies 20 REBEQT 2R
Group
REHE
2013 2012
—EB—-=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Group’s share of net assets NEB E(EEEFE 1,095,487 1,099,031
The following financial information, after making adjustments TH B BER (KRABRANEARER T B et
to conform with the Group’s significant accounting policies, BE—B) HASES HEEKERAG(R
represents the Group’s aggregate share of assets, liabilities, HHAFELMAR)2EE  BFE  Wak
revenue and results of associated companies, all of which are & RBLMmT
unlisted, and is summarised below:
2013 2012
—EBE—-=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Assets BE 2,333,464 2,571,969
Liabilities BfE (1,237,977) (1,472,938)
Net assets BEFHE 1,095,487 1,099,031
Revenue W25 283,247 260,673
Profit for the year REEm 7 58,830 80,667
Particulars of the associated companies are set out on page SN2 58N E150E -
150.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

20 Interests in associated companies (continued) 20 REEE AT 2% (@)
Set out below are the summarised financial information for the THIEE R EBBE SN T 2 IS E R -
associated companies of the Group.

Summarised income statement W A = B3t
Linyi National
CECIC HKC CECIC HKE CECIC HKC (Gansu) Environmental
Wind Power Wind Power Wind Power New Energy
Company Limited Company Limited Company Limited Co., Ltd.
TEREREORE(RY) PHRBRENRE(RY) PHEER(HRIBNRE BrRIER
ARAR BRAT BRAT ARAT
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“%--f _-Z--f <-E-Zf -ZI--f <-§-Zf _-F--F C-%-zf _Z-_f

HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK§'000
Thn o ThR TR TRR Tm TR Tn

Revenue Wz 203,444 277,502 93,087 104,682 240,224 190,706 104,671 104,964
Profit/(loss) for the year REEER/ (2:2) 95,562 143,049 (3,462) 26,316 51,340 38,232 2,770 650
Other comprehensive income ~~ EH2ERA 33,557 12,754 11,034 2,845 24,538 84T 4,241 1,890
Total comprehensive income 2ANAER 129,119 155,803 7,572 29,161 75,878 46,709 7,011 2,540
Dividends received from e UNGIP) &)

associated companies 60,429 57,243 6,810 22,063 18,288 11,153 - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

20 Interests in associated companies (continued) 20 REEE QT Z D @)

Summarised balance sheet AESRERMAM
Linyi National
CECIC HKC CECIC HKE CECIC HKC (Gansu) Environmental
Wind Power Wind Power Wind Power New Energy
Company Limited Company Limited Company Limited Co., Ltd.
hERRERNRE(RL) hEEARENRE(RL) hERER(HBIANEE BTHRERE
BRAT ERAT ERA ERAR
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

“§-zf -F--f¥ -§-zf -Z--%& -§-zf -F--& C—E-zf -E-Cf&
T2 TR TR i TR 1A t2R 1A
=t-H =1-8 =t-H =t-8 =t-H =t-H =t-8 =t-A
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAL T Thn TR Thn TR Thn

Non-current assets ErHEE 1,898,891 1,949,821 1,000,256 1,033,692 1,988,809 2,074,253 322,855 385,328
Current assets EHEE 328,343 624,134 93,185 63,325 399,545 567,406 75,135 56,223
Total assets BELE 2,201,234 2,573,955 1,093,441 1,097,017 2,388,354 2,041,699 397,990 391,546
Non-current liabilities ErHRE 119,011 122,282 511,560 534,835 89,968 95,060 49,359 50,858
Current fiabilties EHAE 958,461 1,279,956 182,922 148,097 1,220,078 1,498,449 137,204 128,541
Total liabiltties A% 1,077,472 1,402,238 694,482 682,932 1,310,046 1,698,509 186,563 174,399
Net assets BERE 1149762 1171717 398,959 414085 1078308 1,048,150 11427 AT147
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the L EN RS AR R BHRK 225
financial statements of the associated companies adjusted for SF  BEBEEREL 2 ERATERAR
any fair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition. A% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

20 Interests in associated companies (continued) 20
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s interests in its

122

associated companies:

At1 January

Opening net assets
Profit/{loss) for the year
Qther comprehensive income
Dividends

At 31 December
Closing net assets

Reporting entlties' share in %
Group's Interests in
associated companies

R-A-A
FAIRERE
REREH/ (ER)
E2ENA

Be

REEE DT 2R @)
REBMREBANTEAETEL5 28

R B B
Linyi National
CECIC HKC CECIC HKE CECIC HKC (Gansu) Environmental
Wind Power Wind Power Wind Power New Energy
Company Limited Company Limited Company Limited Co,, Ltd.
TEREREORE(RY) PERBHENRE(RY) PHEER(HRIBNEE BT RATER
BRAR BRAR BRAR ARAR
2013 212 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 212
2§z "%--F CZ%-zf "R-"F C%-zf T F C%-zf T °f
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TR TR T ThL TEn TR TERL TR
LT 1,159,02 414,085 458436 1,048,150 1,029,323 217,147 214,607
95,562 143,049 (3,462) 26,316 51,340 38,232 2710 650
33,557 12,754 11,034 2,845 24,538 8417 4,241 1,890
(151,074) (143,111) (22,698) (713512) (45,720) (27,882) (12,731) -
1149762 1471717 398,959 41408 1,078308 1,048,150 11427 A7147
40% 40% 30% 30% 40% 40% 40% 40%
459,905 468,687 119,688 124,225 431,323 419,260 84,571 86,859
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

21

Interests in subsidiaries and amounts due

from/to subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost
Provision for impairment

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Provision for impairment

Amounts due to subsidiaries

FELEMAAD - AR
ER

& W B I X )RR
ERE

FE 1Y Bt BB X R 5RIR

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand and are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. Their carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 147

and 149.

21 RWE ARz REW

L NGBS
Company
ARNF]
2013 2012
—E-= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
91,771 89,252
(79,488) (77,055)
12,283 12,197
1,586,173 1,658,384
(72,877) (65,726)
1,513,296 1,492,658
(162,330) (150,147)
1,363,249 1,354,708

HEBARZEBAEER  ©oRARE
SKUEIE - W UABTEAHE - BREEEE AT

BRE -

FTEWBARZHFBHRE147TEEFE149

Eo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

22 Prepayments and trade and other 22 ENREREWERIREMRE

receivables W
Group Company
EE KA T
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F Z—ZT-—_—_f -z Z—T—_F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(i TERx FHT TER THET
Non-current ¥R E
Prepayments TR FIE (@) 32,812 - - -
Other receivables H b FE IR () 24,320 - - -
57,132 - - -
Current mE
Trade receivables JE U BR X (b) 65,967 104,449 -
Other receivables H i fE U R () 33,661 36,878 281 702
99,628 141,327 281 702
156,760 141,327 281 702
Notes: BisE
(a)  The balance represents mainly prepayments for purchase of wind farm (a) HBHETEAXEERETSRLGEIEEER
and equipment for construction purpose. B2 FEITFE ©
(b) At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the ageing analysis of trade b) R-FE—=ZFER_FT——F+_H=+—
receivables by the Group’s revenue recognition policy is as follows: H @ KEBRA R KE T EREH
FRECHWRAT -
2013 2012
—E-=fF —T——4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHART FHAIT
Less than 30 days LHR30H 18,883 19,229
More than 30 days and within 60 days HB30H1BEMN60H K 4,340 4,046
More than 60 days and within 90 days Hi@BE0HEN0B K 2,370 1,464
More than 90 days A0 H 40,374 79,710
65,967 104,449
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

(b)

22 Prepayments and trade and other 22 FARNZREREWERRHME
receivables (continued) WK ()
Notes: (continued) Miet < (&)
(continued) (b) (&)
At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the ageing analysis of trade RZE—=FR-_F——FF+-_A=+—
receivables by invoice due date is as follows: (Note i) H - EkEHZ @?ﬁf"fﬁf BEFHHZ
ST - (Hiat)
2013 2012
—E-=fF —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
Less than 30 days LHR30H 49,678 82,749
More than 30 days and within 60 days HBA30FER60R N 1,447 -
More than 60 days and within 90 days HBA60HBR90H K - -
More than 90 days A0 H 14,842 21,700
65,967 104,449
Note i: Htati -
The Group allows a credit period of 30 days to its trade customers. REFREE SEFIREZIH0AHZ 15
The electricity tariff receivables due from the government have to BB o ERBTE BEZREH EZF48
go through an approval procedure before issuing invoices, which EHEE R-ZE—=F+=-H=+—
the related receivables of which invoices were not issued as at H 1) % 32 16 B8 F& Y& A% 54 36, 100,000% 70
31 December 2013 of HK$36.1 million (2012: HK$66.8 million) (= ZF — =4 : 66,800,000% 7T ) 14 &
are classified as less than 30 days in the ageing analysis. Trade B - R BERE S ITEI L IR30H °
receivables that are less than 30 days past due are not considered BRI L R30 H 2 FEYWBR T % 42 1ER
impaired. As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of HK$16.3 B -R=ZF—=FF+=—HA=+—H E
million (2012: HK$21.7 million) were past due but not impaired. These W Bk 716,300,000, 7 ( =& — — 4 :
relate to the government subsidies on the electricity tariff which 21,700,000/577;)5,@57/57‘/5/@‘{5 =
have not been allocated and distributed. Based on past experience KI5 B R K 2 Bl J Ik B B FTE B A
and industry practice, these tariff premiums are generally paid in 6 B o BERBFZGRNRITEED HEEE
to 12 months from the date of the sales recognition. The amount B — IRt E R H A6 2 1216 A
included HK$14.8 million (2012: HK$19.8 million) trade receivables St o FEFBEIE B 1218 A2 B
on alternative energy business being past due over 12 months. No B 2 75 S AR 26 /5 14,800,0008 T (= &
impairment has been provided for these receivables as the balances 4 19,800,000/ 7T ) ° FIRAEERT
are not in dispute and there is no indication that the amount will not be RN FHZ  WHENSR T B 5EE
collectible. TETUR[E] + BI04 I FE M Rl 1B
B o
Included in other receivables were input value-added taxation (c) Hm EUW 0 F Z 5 FE U #EIE I F

(c)

recoverable of HK$45,117,000 (2012: HK$27,519,000) arising from
purchase of property, plant and equipment.

ﬁe45117000/%7z (=F — = #F :
27,619,000/87T) * I EBEWE - #
28R a8 -

E Eiﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬂj

125




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

22 Prepayments and trade and other 22 ENREREWERIREMRE

receivables (continued) WK )
Notes: (continued) Mfet < ()
(d)  The carrying amount of the Group’s prepayments and trade and other (d)  ANEEFETERENIR R M FEN K
receivables is denominated in the following currencies: ZEREIE T2 B MEHE -
2013 2012
—Z-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FREr FHET
Hong Kong dollars BT 613 908
Renminbi ARE 156,116 140,387
Singapore dollars T 31 32
156,760 141,327
(e) All prepayments and trade and other receivables do not contain (e) B T 5018 % fE U R 5 R Bl JRE e 5 ip
impaired assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting FEEESHELE - RifE HAEERR
date is the carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned REEAFIZEEWK S BREE -
above.
A bank borrowing is secured by certain of the Group’s trade R7T BTG H 2K £ B BR [ 15 40,900,000
receivables with carrying values of HK$40.9 million (2012: HK$70.7 BT (ZF——4 :70,700,000/87T) 2%
million) (Note 27). TIEM R E AR (527 )
23 Restricted cash 23 ZRFIRE
2013 2012
—E-=F —ZE——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHTT
Escrow account relating to a deposit AERESPERAE—BER
held for an alternative energy project BERIEREMEBEEZ2ER - 1,014
The carrying amount is denominated in Renminbi. IREENARESE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A mRME (&)
24 Cash and cash equivalents 24 RERBAESEEY
Group Company
rEH ¥ N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E——-F —8-—= —ET—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT FHIT FERT FAT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 155,978 183,023 1,088 414
Short-term bank deposits FEHASRITIE K 115,072 55,190 24,319 41,711
271,050 238,213 25,407 42,125
Group Company
bS] NG
2013 2012 2013 2012

—8-=f —F-——_f C-B-=f —T——F%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

T FAT TAERT FAET
(@) Placedin banksinthe PRC:  (a) TFHAREEET
- denominated in Renminbi —AARESHE 106,174 31,669 - =
- denominated in Hong Kong — B EHE
dollars 44,903 144,944 - -
- denominated in US dollars —ETEHE 2,720 4,689 - =
(b)  Placed in banks in Hong Kong: (b) EHAREB&ET :
— denominated in Hong Kong — B EHE
dollars 1,518 1,047 770 237
- denominated in Renminbi —AARE:E 115,395 55,506 24,636 41,887
— denominated in Singapore — DAFT % T EtE
dollars 9 9 - =
()  Cashinhand ) TFHER2 331 349 1 1
271,050 238,213 25,407 42,125
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

24

25

128

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as
follows:

Short-term bank deposit RHIRITE R

24

BERBEEEY @)
REE R BEEFIRMOT

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the cash and bank balances stated above.

The short-term bank deposits of the Group and the Company
have original maturities of one to two months.

Significant restrictions

Cash and short-term deposits of HK$153,797,000 (2012:
HK$181,302,000) are held in Mainland China and are subject
to local exchange control regulations, under which the
balances could not be exported freely out of Mainland China.
The repatriation of fund out from Mainland China is possibly
conducted by way of dividends or other means as complied to
the regulations.

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$ RMB HK$ RMB
BT ARH BIT AR
- 2.81% = 2.5%
RBEEHEEEERRESER X

it 2 38 & M RTTAE SRR (E ©

AREBERARRRZEHRITFRZREH
HAE—EZMmIEA -

B RFRF
RAERTBERAENREREREFK
153,797,000 & T ( = & — = & :

181,302,000 7T ) 7H 38 & & H HNE & I 3R
E BN ZEAESTEERELFEK
e - Bo BB ESKEMETRENS
= RE A B KR -

Share capital 25 |7
Non-redeemable
Ordinary shares of convertible preference
HK$0.01 each shares of HK$0.01 each Total
SREEOELLZ BRER0OALL
EER FURETRE LR st
Number of Number of
Note shares HK$'000 shares HK$:000 HK$'000
iR RA%E THR RH%E TR THR
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012, RZE--5-f-H
1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 —E-—F1CR
=t-R %=
£-A-RR=%
—=£12H
== 9,000,000,000 90,000  6,000,000,000 60,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR :
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012, R=E——F-F-H-
1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 —E-ZFt+ZR
=t-R-2%-=
£-A-Ak
e
=r=f @, (o) 2,356,371,843 23,564 300,000,000 3,000 26,564
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

25 Sha

Notes:

(@

(b)

re capital (continued)

On 23 November 2010, the Company issued and allotted 300,000,000
convertible preference shares to STAR at HK$0.65 amounting to
HK$195 million to STAR for cash. STAR may at any time during the
ensuring 4 years require the Company to issue to them a maximum of
260,000,000 additional preference shares at a price of HK$0.75 per
additional preference share. The convertible preference shares carry
rights to convert into ordinary shares at the initial conversion rate of 1
convertible preference share to 1 ordinary share, such conversion rate
being subject to customary adjustments.

Share options are granted to employees, senior executives or officers,
managers, directors or consultants of any members of the Group or
any Invested Entity.

The exercise price must be at least the higher of

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;

(if) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(ifi) the nominal value of a share.

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on which
it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may specify at the
time of grant. An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the date of offer and
a consideration of HK$1 must be paid upon acceptance.

As at 31 December 2013, 6,200,000 units (31 December 2012:
18,250,000 units) of share options remained outstanding and their
weighted average exercise price was HK$0.629 per share (31
December 2012: HK$0.686 per share).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of approximately 1.07 years (31
December 2012: 1.58 years).

25 BRA&(@#m)

et -

(@)

(b)

RZFE—FF+—FA=+=H &K
2 7] X 0.65 & 7T [7] STAR % 77 & Bf %
300,000,000/ (& {8 % 195,000,000;% 7T
Z A[ R RIESE IR IAHE R B % ° STARAT R
FELR PT4F BT (F 1] B BT Z KK Al LA 2 R 58
SMESEARO. 758 T 2 (B 15 A B R % %77
260,000,0008% BSMEBIE AR © AIHEAR B %
R 1 75 4 FI| B 11 R BT 14 IR (B 55 AR 3 1 /iR
BIARRZ W) PR KD 1K AR - 1E
W IR KRBT IEGIFHEMR -

R AL BEE T EK S R Al RE
ERZESR BRITBASKEEASR
I - BEFELRRRUBRE -
TTREBARLBUTEREE -

() RORELABEGRLZHFERE

KA TTE

(i)  BHOEZEREHESHAEEEA
TR BT 7 B #RB X BT 5154 ir
g R

(i) RIDEE -

BIRERR KL AR +F X EF ST
FERRR M B 15 7 < BAZ IR AT ° 12
ERLZIERES ZH AL 1 EE
R HBRBRER - ZEAFRN1ETH

R-E—=##+_H=+—H &#
6,200,000 (= F—=—F+=-H=+—
H : 13,250,000 f& ) fi& A% #E /4 K B 7T
& - MR ME-FIE7TEE R EFAR0.629
BIL(ZFE—=—F1+=A=1+—H : #K
0.686/87T) °

RoB—=F+-A=+—HEATREZ

TERRIEZ 68 T IIHE-F 194 41 F R BA91.07
FE( T —fFf—_H=+—H :1.58%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A mRME (&)
26 Reserves 26 f#%E
Employee
share-based  Convertible
Share Exchange compensation  note-equity Retained
Group A£E premium reserve reserve component earnings Total
EERG TRREE-
17 % E E 5 fte HERE BEHD REEF by
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#x Ti#n Ti#x Ti#x Ti#x Ti#r
Balance at 1 January 2012 WZE-——F-f-HzEH 998,505 123,755 3,205 6,261 638,992 1,765,718
Currency translation differences ERBREER - 7,684 - - - 7,684
Employee share option benefits EEBRERA = = (93) = - (93)
Reversal of equity component BETARERERD D
of convertible note = = = (6,261) 6,261 =
Loss for the year AEEEER - - - - (82,742) (82,742)
Balance at 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-A=1+-H
5% 993,505 131,439 3,112 - 562,511 1,690,567
Balance at 1 January 2013 WE—=F—f—HAz&HK 993,505 131,439 3,112 - 562,511 1,690,567
Currency translation differences ERBEES - 45,502 - - - 45,502
Release of exchange reserve upon HEBR X BRELE
disposal of discontinued operations A - (2,668) - - - (2,668)
Employee share option benefits EERRERT - - 172 - - 172
Lapse of employee share option benefits & B BRERT|% X - - (1,339) - 1,339 -
Profit for the year TEERF - - - - 28,194 28,194
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-EB-=%+-F=1-H
A3 993,505 174,273 1,945 - 592,044 1,761,767
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

Note: The other reserve of the Company related to an acquisition prior to

26 Reserves (continued) 26 f#Em@m)
Employee
Other  share-based ~ Convertible
Share Exchange reserve compensation  note-equity Retained
Company UN| premium reserve (Note) reserve  component earnings Total
Rft R EERS FARREE-

RiEE ERRE (W) RERE B&Ho REBH st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Thn ThR AR TER ThR TER Thr

Balance at 1 January 2012 RZE-—E-f-Hz&H 993,505 92,416 98,709 3,205 6,261 162,378 1,346,474

Currency translation differences ERBEET - 1,606 - - - - 1,606

Employee share option benefits EEBREREA = = = (93) = - (%)

Reversal of equity component BETAREE

of convertible note B&Ho - = - - (6,261) 6,261 =

Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (75,718) (75,718)
Balance at 31 December 2012 W=E-—F+-A=+-H

ki 993,505 94,022 98,709 3,112 - 82,921 1,272,269

Balance at 1 January 2013 R_E-=5-f-Bz&H% 993,505 94,022 98,709 3,112 - 82,921 1,272,269

Currency translation differences EinEEE - 40,054 - - - - 40,054

Employee share option benefits EEBRERH - - - 179 - - 172

Lapse of employee share option benefits (& 2 B RIEREFIXN - - - (1,339) - 1,339 -

Loss for the year TEEBE - - - - - (54,041) (64,041)
Balance at 31 December 2013 W-E-=%+-B=1-H

ZE8 993,505 134,076 98,709 1,945 - 30,219 1,258,454

1 January 2001 and continues to be held in reserves.

Wit - AR Al At FHEE—FEE—F—H—H

B2 —RMEFRBR - WAEEEEHE

&# o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MK mRM ()
27 Bank borrowings 27 RITEN
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —=F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Non-current IERED 562,236 552,247
Current b 72,258 70,897
634,494 623,144
Amounts of HK$568 million (2012: HK$623 million) of bank % #1568,000,000 % 7T (= F — = F
borrowings are secured and guaranteed by fellow subsidiaries. 623,000,000 7T) Z SRITIERE T -
7 R R BB A RIfEER -
An amount of HK$66 million (2012: Nil) of bank borrowings is #52166,000,0008 (= —=4F : &)z
secured and guaranteed by the Company. RITERE THEAR - WHAREEER -
Notes: st -
(a)  The maturity of bank borrowings at the balance sheet date is as (@) REEHRTEKFHLLT :
follows:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—CF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Within one year —FR 72,258 70,897
In the second year FoF 79,675 70,897
In the third year to fifth year BE=FEFRF 239,026 212,690
After the fifth year AFEE 243,535 268,660
634,494 623,144
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TFHT
Wholly repayable after 5 years ARAFEREIEE 634,494 623,144
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A M RR M ()

27

28

Bank borrowings (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b) Bank borrowings are denominated in Renminbi.

(c) The effective interest rate at the balance sheet date was 6.55%
(2012: 6.8%).

(d) Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and
equipment, construction in progress, prepaid land lease payments and
trade receivables of the Group (Notes 16, 17, 18 and 22).

(e) The Group had an undrawn borrowing facilities amounted HK$220
million as of 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

(f) The carrying amount of bank borrowings approximates its fair value.

() The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and
the contractual repricing dates or maturity (whichever is earlier) at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

6 months or less 7~ E A AT
6-12 months ~NET=@A

Convertible note

The Company issued a 6.4% interest bearing convertible note
at a par value of RMB75 million (equivalent to HK$93.2 million)
on 18 December 2012 to a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKC.
The note matures three years from the issue date but can be
early redeemed by both issuer and holder at its nominal value
of RMB75 million with accrued interest or can be converted into
shares at the holder’s option on any business day during the
conversion period at HK$0.68 per share.

The Company repaid a non-interest bearing convertible
note issued in 2009 at a par value of RMB783.5 million on 30
December 2012.

The effective interest rate at the balance sheet date was 6.03%
(2012: 6.03%).

27

28

RITER@m)
Wit (&

(b)  RITEFUARKE

() REEAZERFER655E(ZF—=
F:6.8E) -

(@  IRITEHTIULEFE TYZE - 5K
B ERETE BN HENBREK
BRAAEH AR (HTaE16 - 17 ~ 18J%22) -

(6 R-BE—=%1+-A=+—F X&£F
Z R IEHR (5 5 B & BB 4220,000,000,8 T
(ZF—=F &)

)  RITEAXKREEEERFEEE -

(@  REEHARLFEEEHELFIEED 2R
B BRIEFEE H B ER A (A &R

EREWT :
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
156,026 171,644
478,468 451,500
634,494 623,144

CIE: &2

ARalR=ZE—=—F+=—A+ N NBRABEH
BREEFANNBARRTEEASAR
#&75,000,0007T (48 & 793,200,000 7T )
ZBAEZBIHRKRER - BRREAET
HERRREIM=F 2 - BBTARBEEA
Ha i HEmEARE75,000,000 T B &
FRBHZIREER - kiFH ATEER
R HA T (o] & 2 B 1R & R%0.6878 T 2 (B
g2 KR BRG o

ARARERZE——FE+-_A=1HEZ
ARAR-_ZEZNFRTEAEAEARE
73,500,0007T 2 T B A AT F i o

REEHZEBFEA6.03E(ZF—=
£ :6.03F) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RE PR RME (&)
28 Convertible note (continued) 28 AHARER @)
The convertible note recognised in the balance sheet is REEBBRERZ AIRREEFTENAT

calculated as follows:

Group and Company

REBERADT
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Face value and accrued interest expenses AR E R EE M 2 FE
of convertible note - 101,956 93,519
Equity component of convertible note AR IR A - =
Liability component of convertible note BRI ER =Lt 101,956 93,519
29 Deferred income tax liabilities 29 BEMSBHAME
The analysis of deferred tax liabilities is as follows: BEHEEEITWOT ¢
Group Company
AEME b N/N|
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=F —ZT——F ZB-Z=HF —ZFT——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET FET FET

Deferred tax liabilities: FEERIBEEE :
- To be recovered after more —BRt+_ER%E
than 12 months sz [5] 32,354 33,134 - -
- To be recovered within —#BR+=@AR
12 months W 5] 7,586 8,412 - -

39,940 41,546 - -
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A M RR M ()

29 Deferred income tax liabilities (continued)
The movements in deferred income tax liabilities during the year

are as follows:

Group

At 1 January 2012

Currency translation differences

Credited/(charged) to the profit
or loss (Note 12)

At 31 December 2012

At 1 January 2013
Currency translation differences
Credited to the profit or loss (Note 12)

At 31 December 2013

Company

At 1 January
Movement during the year

At 31 December

29 EEFIEHREE@®)
ERCELRBHAaBE EEHMT ¢
REHE
Fair value
adjustment
arising from
business ~ Withholding ~ Convertible
combinations tax note Total
REEBSHZ
AVEAR BHH ARRER @t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET TEL TET
R-Z——%—HA—H (32,635) (33,285) (399) (66,319)
ERAEEE 279) (316) = (595)
TEBRERA/(IR)

(fizE12) 29,861 (4,892) 399 25,368
RZE——#+-A=1+—H (3,053) (38,493) = (41,546)
WZZ-—=%—-A—H (3,053) (38,493) - (41,546)
ERAEEE 364 (1,393) - (1,029)
TEBRERFAME12) 334 2,301 - 2,635
RZE—=F+-A=+—H (2,355) (37,585) - (39,940)

P /N
Convertible note
R ER

2013 2012
—E—=F T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FAHETT
Rn—A—H - (399)
FAREH) - 399
R+—_A=+—8H - _

BARRRERRAA
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A M RR M ()

29

30

31

136

Deferred income tax liabilities (continued) 29
Company (continued)

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
HK$32,129,000 (2012: HK$33,220,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$112,476,000 (2012: HK$117,308,000)

that can be carried forward against future taxable income.
These tax losses have no expiry dates except tax losses of
HK$109,692,000 (2012: HK$114,524,000) which expire at
various dates up to 2018 (2012: 2017).

Derivative liability 30
The balance represents the subscription right granted to STAR,
and is fair valued at 31 December 2013 and 2012 (Note 25(a)).

EEFISBaE @)

RNE) ()

N & B N TE B 48112,476,00078 7T (=
T — — & : 117,308,000 7T ) ®E R IE iT
Fr 18 B & & 32,129,000 T ( =& — —
£ : 33,220,000/ 7T ) A A GBS A 12
FERBIWA - ZF5HIBEBELEERR
Hi - M£109,692,000/8 70 ( = F — —4F
114,524,000 7T ) 2 T IE BB R R E =
—E-NF(ZE——F: ZF—+tF)Ik
ZTRBHER e

TETAREE
HEERIEMSTARBE L v R HR =%
—=FRkZF——F+ZA=+—HERQ
FEE(HFE25@)) °

Trade and other payables 31 EFRRRHEAESRK
Group Company
KEH AAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F T =Z8B-=F —T—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx TET FERT FHIT
Trade payables FETBR X 461 199 - =
Payables for acquisition and EHBEREZRDE
construction of property, =N A AN
plant and equipment 125,504 27,335 - =
Other payables and accruals Hip et M et & A 8,033 11,317 1,927 3,033
133,998 38,851 1,927 3,033

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the ageing analysis of trade
payables is as follows:

Less than 12 months LR+ =@A
12 months and more +=@A MK E
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R_E—=FER-—FT——F+-_A=+—
B EMERRZERI O

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—E-= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
215 199
246 =
461 199




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A mRME (&)
31 Trade and other payables (continued) 31 ENERRRHEMEMSRK @
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables REBEMNBRERREMENRZREER
are denominated in the following currencies: AT EBZIE :
2013 2012
—E-= —ET——HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Hong Kong dollars BT 2,843 3,740
Renminbi ARHE 131,115 35,096
Singapore dollars s T 40 15
133,998 38,851
At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the other payables of the RZE—=FR=_FT—ZF+ZA=+—
Company are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. B - RApalz Ha R FRABTTEHE -
32 Commitments 32 AEE
(a) Capital commitments () EAREE
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not yet REEPBEEAEENREEZER
incurred was as follows: AT :
Group rEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Capital expenditure in respect of alternative BEEERELRIER 2
energy projects: BARRL :
Contracted but not provided for EEFEER T 141,351 86,929
Authorised but not contracted for EREERETA - 227,802
141,351 314,731
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A mRME (&)
32 Commitments (continued) 32 AEEm@m)
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) EREHEET 2&IE
The aggregate future minimum lease payments under RIRA B+ i REF 2 Do B K
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and EHETARARENzZEHS L
buildings were as follows: Ul
Group rEE
2013 2012
—Eg-= —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
No later than 1 year —FR 789 559
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —F&{ERER 1,343 -
2,132 559
33 Related party transactions 33 BHARS
The Group entered into transactions with the following related HE-_Z—=Fk=-_F—=-F+=A4
parties for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, =+—HIEFE  AEEZETS@ERS
RN ZRGMT °
(@) Administrative services fee, which includes the office (a MEEEBRARZIFTHEEHSE
overhead, and reimbursement of cost of internal B BERAEKEERS  URE
audit, legal and information technology department of NAEE - EERE MBI
HK$1,026,000 (2012: HK$1,414,000) was paid to the X 7Z81,026,000/8 7T (= ZF — =4 :
ultimate holding company. 1,414,000 7T) °
(b)  Office rental of HK$926,000 (2012: HK$926,000) was paid b) MEKERARNIZIGHAZTHES
to the ultimate holding company. 926,000/ 70( = ZF — =4 : 926,000
PEIT) °
The above related party transactions are continuing connected Ll BB T R SRR X TR A L AR Al
transactions exempt from the reporting, annual review, (I Em3R A )) F14A 3318 A A XA 0 ST
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval BHABR®R  FEEZ A5 REZRER
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Rules Governing HEREZRFEBRERS -
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange.
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A M RR M ()

33 Related party transactions (continued)

©

Key management compensation
Key management solely represents directors of the
Company. The compensation paid or payable to key
management is shown as below:

Salaries and other benefits e RHEAET
Directors’ fees EE0E
Share-based compensation, net DB F 58

Pension cost — defined contribution scheme 3E{Rk& ik 2N — e 2B Et =it 2]

As at 31 December 2013, the Group provided guarantee
to counter parties in respect of credit facilities granted to
certain associated companies of HK$164,978,000 (2012:
HK$727,160,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Company provided
guarantee to counter parties in respect of credit facilities
granted to certain associated companies of HK$ Nil (2012:
HK$559,247,000) and a wholly owned subsidiary of
HK$74,176,000 (2012: HKS$ Nil).

The transactions did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

33 BEARSZ @)

()

EBEDAR 2 HH
TEEBABRATAAES - B
CEL GEE13-IN-FE - L]
mT

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
3,445 5,189

750 804

172 (93)

45 51

4,412 5,951

R-ZTE—=fF+=-A=+—H ' &«
SERETHERARERZEER
& (A ¥ F 77 12 fit 45 1R 164,978,000
BT (=T — =4 : 727,160,00078
JL) °

RZE—=%+ZA=+—8"
ARl ETHERAAR—K2
EHREMBRARERZEERE
MEFHTDRREREEREEL(Z
T — —4F: 559,247,000 T ) &
74,176,000 C( =T —=4F: &) o

BERXZATER LHRAE14AE
FrE 2 ER 5 »

BERRRERRAR

139




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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34 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement 34 FmEBESRERKEE
Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash used FrEBpaEEEKEXEMAEES 2

140

in operations

Profit/(loss) before income tax including
discontinued operations

Finance costs

Finance income

Depreciation and amortisation

Gain on disposal

Impairment losses

Share of profits less losses of associated
companies

Fair value gain on derivative liability

Waiver of other payable

Share-based compensation, net

Operating profit before working capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in inventory
Decrease/(increase) in trade and

other receivables
Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

China Renewable Energy Inv§§§ment Limitfegr
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R
2013 2012
—E—= —E—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FBT
FTisRian=F),/ (E18)

(BREEBRIEEEER) 33,990 (110,267)
BLE B AR 46,755 51,174
U ON (3,351) (2,016)
ITE R E 62,454 70,414
& s (2,668) (807)
REBE - 133,516
FEAG B 4 A R R ES 18

(58,830) (80,667)
PMTETAEBRZATFERR (2,150) (7,140)
Eh o0 E A FE A K (915) -
Bein #8558 172 (93)
KREtEEESE DA 2

# i | 75,457 54,114
FEGEM), W (182) 673
JFEE LT B 50 B L At PR UK

A, (38 hn) 51,650 (28,284)
JE AT BR R R L A S 0 (9,084) (64,851)
REmE(FTA)BRS 117,841 (38,348)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A mRME (&)
35 Discontinued operations 35 BRIKEEK
The Group discontinued its business in software development AEEDRIEERERBEES(RYIBAE
(Shenzhen Namtek Company Limited), and the results of this FRMERARF)  HEBZEEZIARE
business are reported as discontinued operations. During the WRIEEEHER - FA - EHERBBENER
year, this business was voluntarily liquidated. TEHE o
Financial information relating to the discontinued operations is BRI E X MBEERIT
as follows:
(a) Assets of disposal group as held for sale () BFEGEZEBAEE
2013 2012
—E-=F — T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents B MREEEY - 12,381
(b) Liabilities of disposal group as held for sale (b) BESEZRBHEE
2013 2012
—E-= —ET——HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Other payables H b e 3k - 7
() Cumulative income recognised in other (c) REMEZEKARIEBEIES
comprehensive income relating to disposal group BEGECEEA B RA
classified as held for sale
2013 2012
—E-= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Currency translation differences M e =5 - 2,539

BAERRRERRAE 141

—E = FER



142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

35 Discontinued operations (continued)
(d)

follows:

Revenue
Expenses

Profit before taxation of discontinued
operations
Taxation

Profit from discontinued operations

Profit for the year from discontinued
operations attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company

The net cash flows attributable to the discontinued

operations are as follows:

Operating cash flows
Investing cash flows

Total net cash flows

China Renewable Energy In\{e§;ment Limit‘gg
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Analysis of result and net cash flows attributable
to disposal group classified as held for sale
Analysis of the result of discontinued operations is as

35 CRIMEEXEE @)
d) BESEZEBAEL%ES
WEBESHETHE
DR HQB RIS 7 #ESITIT -

2013 2012

—E-=F —T——fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FBT FHIT

W% - 142

X - (42)
B AR RS 75 2 Bl A )

- 100

AL - =

ERIEREER ZEF - 100
ATEMMRE B R IEEE S

B ARNEERF
—ARNFE=FEA - 100

ERIEREXBEREZHEESREF
FEAOT

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT

(30)
- 7,594

IR G FRE - 7,564
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FEBEERRRERAT

mEMBHRRME(E)
36 Financial instruments by category 36 ZERESZEMIA
Group AEE
Loans and
receivables
BERERERK
HK$’000
FBT
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet REGECEEABRIITREE
31 December 2012 R_E——F+-_HA=+—H
Trade and other receivables (Note 22) JFEE U5 AR 5 B L A R AR (B 322) 141,327
Restricted cash (Note 23) Z PR 138 & (FFsE23) 1,014
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) RERBSEEBY(H:E24) 238,213
Total 5T 380,554
31 December 2013 RZB—=F+-H=+—H
Trade and other receivables (Note 22) JFE i B SR % L i R (B RE22) 123,948
Restricted cash (Note 23) SRR HIR & (MfsE23) =
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) Be MRS EEY(HE24) 271,050
Total BT 394,998
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36 Financial instruments by category (continued) 36 RERIE D 2L T B @)

Group (continued) REE(HF)
Liabilities at Financial
fair value liabilities
through profit  at amortised
or loss cost Total
RAREEER R A
RIRZEE JRZ2eMAE st
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT FHIT
Liabilities as per consolidated RizEEEEBXRAT
balance sheet aE
31 December 2012 R-_ZT——F+—A#
=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note 27) RITER(HI5E27) - 623,144 623,144
Convertible note (Note 28) AT AR =4 (P 5E28) = 93,519 93,519
Derivative liability (Note 30) PTAET A8 EME30) 2,150 - 2,150
Trade and other payables (Note 31) &<t BR 7k K2 E fih fE {5 3K
(Bt3E31) - 38,851 38,851
Total 1t 2,150 755,514 757,664
31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+=A
=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note 27) RITE R (M EE27) - 634,494 634,494
Convertible note (Note 28) AT AR =4 (M9 5E28) = 101,956 101,956
Derivative liability (Note 30) PTET A8 &EKEE30) 36 - 36
Trade and other payables (Note 31) &1t BR Z F2 E i FE f~H 3K
(BfF5ES31) - 133,998 133,998
Total @t 36 870,448 870,484
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36 Financial instruments by category (continued) 36 RERIE D 2L T B @)

Company ¥ /N
Loans and
receivables
ERRERR
HK$’000
FH&T
Assets as per balance sheet REEABRFIREE
31 December 2012 RZE—ZF+ZHA=+—H
Other receivables (Note 22) A WKk (B 5E22) 702
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 21) FE UL BT 8~ m)FRIE (Fd5E21) 1,492,658
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) Re MRS FEEW(KIzE24) 42,125
Total HBEt 1,535,485
31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+="A=+—H
Other receivables (Note 22) H At fE WK (BT 5E22) 281
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 21) FE U B A R 5k A (B sE21) 1,513,296
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) He MRS EEY(HE24) 25,407
Total FEE 1,638,984
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

36 Financial instruments by category (continued)

Company (continued)

Liabilities as per balance sheet

31 December 2012

Convertible note (Note 28)

Amounts due to subsidiaries
(Note 21)

Derivative liability (Note 30)

Other payables (Note 31)

Total

31 December 2013

Convertible note (Note 28)

Amounts due to subsidiaries
(Note 21)

Derivative liability (Note 30)

Other payables (Note 31)

Total

REESBERFIRAE
RZE——F+=A
=+—H
AR IR (M 5E28)
FES B A BIFE
(ff&E21)
PTETEARE(MEES0)
E R (M EE31)

st

R-ZE—=%+=A#
=+—H

AT AR =4 (M9 5E28)

JE ST BT BB X B IB
(FizE21)

PTET ABEE(MIFES0)

H A FEAT R (M FEST)
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36 REHE sz ITEm@®)

RATF(HE)

Liabilities at Financial
fair value liabilities
through profit  at amortised

or loss cost Total
BEAYE RE R
ERE&ZR SRR 2

SRz & & =i #at

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FET T

- 93,519 93,519

- 150,147 150,147

2,150 - 2,150

- 3,033 3,033

2,150 246,699 248,849

- 101,956 101,956

- 162,330 162,330

36 - 36

- 1,927 1,927

36 266,213 266,249




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

37 Principal subsidiaries and associated 37. TEfiBE AR REE QT
companies
Listed below are the subsidiaries and associated companies
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the result

TRV ESARYEAREREER LE
EFEBREIEXEZHBARRBER

and/or net assets of the Group. A e
Place of incorporation/ Issued share  Percentage of equity/
operation and kind of capital/Paid up Paid up registered
Name legal entity Principal activities registered capital capital held
HRERY/ BEHER BRAREK/ iEsE $:98 ¢ |
£ HEERER IEXH EARmELR EMERF DL
2013 2012
ZE-=f —2-—F%
Subsidiaries
WEAR
Shenzhen Namtek Company Limited PRC/Wholly foreign-owned Liquidated US$800,000 0% 100%
(Note)** enterprise
R EEEFRImARR R () hE/NEEE R BER 800,000%7T
Best Whole Holdings Limited* Hong Kong Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
REZRERAR &k RERR 18T
Joy Holdings Limited* British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
EEREHS HERR (EI
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi ll)  Hong Kong Investment holding HK$1,000 100% 100%
Wind Power Limited
BEMER(MFIE_ )RR ARAF A RERR 1,000 7T
HKE (Da He) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
BRMAR (AN ) ERER AR B RERR 18T
HKE (Wind Power) Holdings Limited? British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
BEMER(RE) BERERA R AERLES RERR (E
China Renewable Energy Hong Kong Human resources HK$1 100% 100%
(Services) Limited management
PEBERR(ER)ARLA B ANERER 18T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

37 Principal subsidiaries and associated 37. TEMEB AT REE AT @)

companies (continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued share  Percentage of equity/
operation and kind of capital/Paid up Paid up registered
Name legal entity Principal activities registered capital capital held
HMRYL/ BEHHR BRAREK/ fisEs /B
£ HEERED TEER EARmELR AMEXEA L
2013 2012
“E-=f Z—ZT--F
Subsidiaries
WEAR
HKE Danjinghe (BVI) Wind Power British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1,000 100% 100%
Limited*
EENMRERIBVEBMARARY  AERLES RERR 1,000%7T
HKE (BVI) Limited** British Virgin Islands Investment holding USS$1 100% 100%
BMEREVIERAG EERLEE RERR Ey
HKE (Gansu) Wind Power Limited- Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
EEIR(HB) B ERAA! &4/ HE RERR 18T
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$2 100% 100%
Wind Power Limited*
BEMER(MFIE)REERA R &8/ mE REER 28T
HKC (Linyi) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
ERRR (B ERER AR B4/ HE RERR 18T
HKE (Danjinghe) Wind Power Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$4 100% 100%
EAMER(ERET)BEERAF! Bk REER 48T
Sinoriver International Limited** British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
hIBRAR AR EBRIBE/TE RERR EH
Sinoriver International (Wind Power) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$20 100% 100%
Limited*
B (RE)ERA R b REER 2087

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jment Limitgegr
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

37 Principal subsidiaries and associated 37.

companies (continued)

Name

1!

Subsidiaries

WEAR
APC Wind Power Pte Limited**
Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company
Ltd.*
THRNEE (L) ER AR
Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling)
Co. Ltd.*

ERRNEE(BR)ARAF

RRMERNFEEREARAR

AREMERNF EEREARAR

Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of
legal entity

MR/ BEHER
EEERER

Singapore

# g

PRC/Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

HE/ PR ERE

PRC/Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

hE/PHRELE

PRC/Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

hE/PHRELE

PRC/Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

hE/PHRELE

Principal activities

EL:33

Investment holding

REZK

Wind Power project in
Heilongjiang, the PRC

RPBRRETIRNEEER

Wind Power project in
Heilongjiang, the PRC

RPERETZRN%EER

Wind Power project in
Siziwang Qi, Inner
Mongolia, the PRC

RABERFEEF I
EWIEE

Wind power project in
Siziwang Qi, Inner
Mongolia, the PRC

RAERFEEF
EWIEE

FEMBARIREE AT (@)

Issued share
capital/Paid up
registered capital
BRIRE/
BEARmER

SGD10
1037 0% TT

HK$100,000,000
100,000,000 7T
HK$150,100,000
150,100,000 7
RMB166,480,000
ARE
166,480,00070
RMB172,526,500

AR
172,526,5007C

BARRRERRAA

Percentage of equity/
Paid up registered
capital held
fisEs /B
EMERFDL
2013 2012
“E-=f Z—ZT--F
100% 100%
86% 86%
86.68% 86.68%
100% 100%
100% 100%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A M RR M ()

37 Principal subsidiaries and associated 37.

150

companies (continued)

Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of

Name legal entity
EALAVE S-S

£ HEERED
Associated companies
BERT
CECIC HKC Wind Power PRC/Sino-foreign equity

Company Limited+#~ joint venture
PERARENEE(RIL)ERARD B/ PNEELE

CECIC HKE Wind Power Company Limited+= PRC/Sino-foreign equity

joint venture
PEEBERNEE(RIL)ERAR  hE/HHEERE
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power PRC/Sino-foreign equity
Company Limited+*~ joint venture
PEER(HRBANEE hEl /R ERE
BRARO
Linyi National Environmental PRC/Sino-foreign equity
New Energy Co., Ltd.** joint venture
TR R AR A R TE/ PR ELE

Principal activities

EL:33

Wind power project in

FEMBARIREE AT (@)

Danjinghe, Hebei, the PRC

REETILERT L
Ek e

Wind power project in

Lunaobao, Hebei, the PRC

R LAEEL
EmEL e

Wind power project in
Changma, Gansu, the
PRC

REEHBEESLZ
B %EEER

Waste-to-energy project in

Linyi, Shandong, the PRC

RPBELREITZ
NRHERENA

Note: Shenzhen Namtek Company Limited was voluntary liquidated in 2013.

Remarks:

* Interest held by subsidiaries

Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
o

purpose only

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jment Limitgegr

Annual Report 2013

Unofficial English transliterations or translations for identification

Issued share  Percentage of equity/
capital/Paid up Paid up registered
registered capital capital held
BRITRE/ fisEs /B
EARmELR AMEXEA L
2013 2012
“E-=F %%
RMB545,640,000 40% 40%
AEE
545,640,0007T
RMB323,260,000 30% 30%
AR
323,260,0007
RMB589,620,000 40% 40%
AR
589,620,0007T
RMB100,000,000 40% 40%
AR
100,000,0007T

Hiat - R EF R AR A A ER2013F

=)
ot -
® BN BARFE

2 I B E B AT AN F ISP
o FFIEA R FRELBF - EHB)




Five-year Financial Summary

hEMBERBE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—B-=F —T-——fF —F——% —_FT-FTF _TTNF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
THET TET TET T TAET

Consolidated statement of 428 2E W AREK
comprehensive income

Revenue Wz
Continuing operations T EIR K 113,744 99,513 89,897 17,897 -
Discontinued operations EAR PR T - - 792 6,213 10,609
113,744 99,513 90,689 24,110 10,609
Profit/(loss) before FTSBiAT&EF
income tax (Eﬂ%)
Continuing operations 1B IR R 33,990 (110,367) (4,317) 365,233 6,340
Discontinued operations E%ZJJ:%%M%?% - 100 (3,486) (5,513) (3,686)
33,990  (110,267) (7,803) 359,720 2,654
Income tax (expense)/credit  Ff15 ﬁ SH) e
Continuing operations FEp e s (6,382) 15,648 12,369 (25,399) (14,862)
Discontinued operations E%%Jt%“i&%ﬁ% - - - 1,003 526
(6,382) 15,648 12,369 (24,396) (14,336)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEZHF,/ (FR)
Continuing operations REREEE 27,608 (94,719) 8,052 339,834 (8,522)
Discontinued operations AR E T - 100 (3,486) (4,510) (3,160)
27,608 (94,619) 4,566 335,324 (11,682)
Non-controlling interests R 586 11,877 8,630 987 1,251
Profit/(loss) attributable RATERTBA
to equity holders of the e R,
Company (B18)
Continuing operations BEREER 28,194 (82,842) 16,682 340,821 (7,271)
Discontinued operations EAR PR TS - 100 (3,486) (4,510 (3,160)
28,194 (82,742) 13,196 336,311 (10,431)
Consolidated balance sheet 4&BEAGR
Net current assets REEEFE 69,001 193,900 198,589 265,317 170,296
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,324,548 2,120,406 2,293,555 2,231,471 217,368
Non-current liabilities FEnRBEE (602,176)  (593,793)  (684,653)  (815,741) (80,650)
Net assets including EEFEBRE
non-controlling interests FEFEAR I i 1,791,373 1,720,513 1,807,491 1,681,047 307,014
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Five-year Financial Summary (continued)

TEMBERBE(R)

Share capital
Reserves
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Earnings/(loss) per share
— basic
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Dividend per share
— attributable to the year
Return on total equity (note)

Note:

Return on total equity represents the current year’s profit/loss for the year
expressed as a percentage of the closing total equity for the year concerned.

Annual Report 2013

[LEN
G
IR S

AR

siaH(BR)
—&EK
BERIEEX

FHEE
—REEEME
e REm R
(PB&E)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—B-=F —T-——fF —F——% —_FT-FTF _TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET FHET FET FHETT
26,564 26,564 26,564 25,422 7,726
1,761,767 1,690,567 1,765,718 1,631,945 299,288
3,042 3,382 15,209 23,680 =
1,791,373 1,720,513 1,807,491 1,681,047 307,014
1.20 (3.51) 1.42 40.2 (0.95)

- = (0.30) (0.53) (0.41)

1.20 (3.51) 1.12 39.67 (1.36)

Nil & Nil4E Nil4E Nil4E Nil &
1.54% (5.5%) 0.3% 19.9% (3.8%)

China Renewable Energy Inv§§jment Limitgegr
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